
Town of Johnstown 450 South Parish Avenue Johnstown, CO 80534    Phone: 970-587-4664 Fax: 970-587-0141 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

TO:        Honorable Mayor and Town Council 
 
FROM:  Diana Seele, Town Clerk/Treasurer 
 
DATE:   December 12, 2018 
 
RE:  Meet & Greet – Finance Director Candidates 
 
Mayor and Council, 
 
Please be informed that a meet and greet with the candidates for the Finance Director has been 
scheduled for Monday, December 17, 2018 beginning at 5:45 p.m.   
 
Should you have questions, please contact me. 
 
Thank you. 
 



 

 

TOWN COUNCIL 

 

MEETING 

 

PACKET 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
December 17, 2018 



 Town Council 
 

Agenda 
Monday, December 17, 2018 

          Town Hall, Council Chambers 
 450 So. Parish Avenue 

7:00 PM 
 

MISSION STATEMENT-“The mission of the government of the Town of Johnstown is to provide leadership based upon trust and 
integrity, commitment directed toward responsive service delivery, and vision for enhancing the quality of life in our community. 

 
Members of the audience are invited to speak at the Council meeting.  Public Comment (item No. 5) is reserved for citizen 
comments on items not contained on the printed agenda.  Citizen comments are limited to three (3) minutes per speaker. When 
several people wish to speak on the same position on a given item, they are requested to select a spokesperson to state that position. 
If you wish to speak at the Town Council meeting, please fill out a sign-up sheet and present it to the Town Clerk. 
 

1) CALL TO ORDER 
A) Pledge of Allegiance 

 

2) ROLL CALL 
 

3)    AGENDA APPROVAL 
 

4)    RECOGNITIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS 
 

5)    PUBLIC COMMENT (three-minute limit per speaker) 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
The “Consent Agenda” is a group of routine matters to be acted on with a single motion and vote.  The Mayor will ask if any 
Council member wishes to have an item discussed or if there is public comment on those ordinances marked with an *asterisk.  
The Council member may then move to have the subject item removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion separately.   
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

6)   CONSENT AGENDA 
 A) Town Council Meeting Minutes – December 3, 2018 
 B)  Payment of Bills 
       C)  November Financial Statements 
       D) Water and Sewer Service Agreement – Lazy Dog Erie, LLC 
       E)  Water and Sewer Service Agreement – In-Line Shops 
       F)  Resolution 2018-23 – A Resolution Adopting A Purchasing & Surplus Policy; Superseding Resolution Nos. 98-9, 2002-10,  
             2003-01 And 2011-04; Superseding Resolution No. 2017-10 To The Extent of A Conflict  
        
7)   TOWN MANAGER REPORT 
 
8)   TOWN ATTORNEY REPORT 
 
9)   OLD BUSINESS 

 
10)   NEW BUSINESS 
      A)   Public Hearing – Resubdivision of Outlot D, Corbett Glen Filing No. 4.     
        B)   Consider Agreement with RG and Associates 
        C)   Discussion of Infrastructure Investment 
        D)   Presentation of Plaque to John Franklin, Town Planner 
        E)   Presentation of Plaque to Mayor Scott James 
         
11)  COUNCIL REPORTS AND COMMENTS 
 

12)  MAYOR’S COMMENTS    
 
13)   ADJOURN 
  
 
                                                                              Work Session 
 
1)  Representatives from Waste Management 
 

 

 



 
                                                                        Cake and Refreshments 
 
Reception honoring Mayor Scott James and Town Planner John Franklin 
 

     NOTICE OF ACCOMODATION 
If you need special assistance to participate in the meeting, please contact the Town Clerk at (970) 587-4664. Notification at least 72 hours prior to the 
meeting will enable the Town to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the meeting. 



AGENDA ITEM 6A-F 

 

 

 

CONSENT  
AGENDA 

• Council Minutes – December 3, 2018 
• Payment of Bills 

• November Financial Statements 
• Water and Sewer Service Agreement – Lazy Dog 

Erie, LLC 
• Water and Sewer Service Agreement – In-Line 

Shops 
• Resolution 2018-23, Adopting a Purchasing Policy          

 
 
 

 

 

                        



  
 
 

 
 
 
   

 
COUNCIL 
MINUTES 

 
  

 
 

  
 
 
       



The Town Council of the Town of Johnstown met on Monday, December 3, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. in the 
Council Chambers at 450 S. Parish Avenue, Johnstown. 
 
Mayor James led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Roll Call 
 
Those present were:   Councilmembers Lebsack, Lemasters, Mellon, Molinar Jr., Tallent and Young 
 
Also present:  Matt LeCerf, Interim Town Manager, Avi Rocklin, Town Attorney, Chief Brian Phillips, 
John Franklin, Town Planner and Diana Seele, Town Clerk/Treasurer 
  
Agenda Approval 
 
Councilmember Mellon made a motion seconded by Councilmember Young to approve the amended 
Agenda, removing the work session with Waste Management.  Motion carried with a unanimous vote.   
 
Consent Agenda 
 
Councilmember Lebsack made a motion seconded by Councilmember Mellon to approve the Consent 
Agenda with the following items:   

• November 19, 2018 Town Council Meeting Minutes 
• 2nd Reading – Ordinance Number 2018-154 – Amending Section 17-230 of the Johnstown 

Municipal Code to Add Subsection (b) Imposing Impact Fees on Behalf of the Front Range Fire 
Rescue Fire Protection District 

• Resolution 2018-18, Committing funds to CDOT for I-25, US-34, 402 Interchanges 
• Resolution 2018-22, Affirming the Town’s Commitment to Enter Into An Intergovernmental 

Agreement with the Colorado Department of Transportation Related to Disposal of the Interstate 
25 East Frontage Road From State 60 to Ronald Regan Blvd. 

• Water Agreement Between Town of Johnstown and Keto Colorado Enterprises, LLC 
• Appointment of Planning Commissioner  

Motion carried with a unanimous vote.  
 
Town Manager Report   
Interim Manager Matt LeCerf requested input from Council in reference to allocating funds for bonus’s 
to town employees.  Councilmember Mellon made a motion seconded by Councilmember Lebsack to 
allocate $350.00 for full-time employees and $200.00 for part-time employees.  Motion carried with a 
unanimous vote. 
 
New Business 
 
A.  Public Hearing – The Villages (Hwy 402/I-25) Preliminary Plat – J25 Land Holdings, LLC 
submitted a request for approval of The Villages at Johnstown (Hwy 402/I-25) Preliminary Plat for a 
246 acre parcel of land.  The zoning for the property is Planned Unit Development – Mixed Use, PUD-
Residential and PUD-Industrial.  The original Villages at Johnstown Preliminary Plat was approved in 
2005. No final plats were approved the preliminary plat expired and a new updated plat was submitted. 



Johnstown, Colorado                                                -2-                                    December 3, 2018 
 
Mayor James opened the public hearing at 7:15 p.m.    Representatives from the applicant addressed 
questions from council.  Two neighbors had concerns with the amount of traffic this development will 
generate, impact current lifestyles and the safety of those traveling CR 18.   Mayor James closed the 
public hearing at 7:45 p.m.  Councilmember Lemasters made a motion seconded by Councilmember 
Tallent to approve The Villages at Johnstown Preliminary Plat.  Motion carried with Councilmember 
Mellon voting no.   
 
B.  Public Hearing – The Villages at Johnstown (Hwy 402/I-25) Amended Performance Standards – J-
25 Holdings submitted a request for approval of The Villages at Johnstown (Hwy402/I-25) amended 
Performance Standards (Design Guidelines) for a 246 acre parcel of land.  The proposed amendments 
include changes to the residential guidelines and also typographical and grammatical corrections.  The 
original Performance Standards were approved in 2005.   
 
Mayor James opened the public hearing at 8:07 p.m. having no public comments the public hearing was 
closed at 8:13 p.m.  Councilmember Mellon made a motion seconded by Councilmember Lebsack to 
approve The Villages at Johnstown (Hwy402/I-25) Amended Performance Standards.  Motion carried 
with  a unanimous vote. 
 
C.  Consider Intergovernmental Agreement with the Front Range Fire Rescue Fire Protection District for 
the Assessment, Collection and Remittance of Emergency Service Impact Fees -  Colorado revised 
Statutes 29-10-104.5 permits a local government to impose impact fees for fire protection districts that 
provide fire protection, rescue and emergency services for new development.  If a local government 
elects to impose an impact fee, then the local government and the fire protection district are required to 
enter into an intergovernmental agreement.  The IGA permits for the assessment, collection and 
remittance of the impact fee; and must be approved between the Town and the Fire District.  
Councilmember Lebsack made a motion seconded by Councilmember Young to approve the 
Intergovernmental Agreement with the Front Range Fire Rescue Fire Protection District for the for the 
Assessment, Collection and Remittance of Emergency Service Impact Fees and authorize the Mayor to 
sign it.  Motion carried with a unanimous vote. 
 
D.  Resolution No. 2018-19, A Resolution Summarizing Expenditures and Revenues for Each Fund and 
Adopting a Budget for the Town of Johnstown, Colorado for the Calendar Year Beginning on the First 
Day of January, 2019 and Ending on the Last Day of December, 2019.  Councilmember Young made a 
motion seconded by Councilmember Molinar Jr. to approve Resolution No. 2018-19.  Motion carried 
with a unanimous vote. 
 
E.  Resolution No. 2018-20, A Resolution Appropriating Sums of Money to the Various Funds and 
Spending Agencies in the Amounts and for the Purposes as Set Forth, for the Town of Johnstown, 
Colorado for the 2019 Budget year.  Councilmember Lemasters made a motion seconded by 
Councilmember Young to approve Resolution No. 2018-20.  Motion carried with a unanimous vote. 
 
 
 
 



Johnstown, Colorado                                          -3-                                                December 3, 2018 
 
F.  Resolution No. 2018-21, A Resolution Levying General Property Taxes for the Year 2019, to Help  
Defray the Costs of Government for the Town of Johnstown, Colorado for the 2019 Budget Year. 
Councilmember Young made a motion seconded by Councilmember Lebsack to approve Resolution No. 
2018-21.  Motion carried with a unanimous vote. 
 
Executive Session 
 
Councilmember Mellon made a motion seconded by Councilmember Lebsack to recess into Executive 
Session for a conference with the Town Attorney pursuant to C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(b) to discuss 
possible litigation between the Town of Johnstown and Thompson Crossing Metro District. 
 
There being no further business to come before the Council the meeting adjourned at 9:38 p.m. 
 
                                                               
 
                                                                       Mayor                                     
 
 
                                                          Town Clerk/Treasurer 



  
 
 

 
 
 
   

 
PAYMENT 

OF 
BILLS 

 
  

 
 

  
 
 
       







 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NOVEMBER 
FINANCIALS 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY NOVEMBER 2018
92.00%

Actual Budget Variance %

GENERAL

Revenues 14,196,882.00    10,203,800.00  (3,993,082.00)  139%

Expenditures

Legislative 24,005.00           37,800.00         13,795.00        64%
Judicial 42,489.00           50,100.00         7,611.00          85%
Elections 18,861.00           18,600.00         (261.00)            101%
Administration 350,241.00         429,100.00       78,859.00        82%
Planning & Zoning 166,343.00         218,000.00       51,657.00        76%
Police 1,947,054.00      2,332,100.00    385,046.00      83%
Protective Inspections 150,827.00         205,800.00       54,973.00        73%
Streets 1,158,158.00      1,512,300.00    354,142.00      77%
Cemetery 29,188.00           41,000.00         11,812.00        71%
Animal Control 76,427.00           95,200.00         18,773.00        80%
Senior Coordinator 65,080.00           73,600.00         8,520.00          88%
Parks 49,745.00           67,000.00         17,255.00        74%
Community 182,819.00         879,300.00       696,481.00      21%
Transfers 2,189,238.00      2,223,700.00    34,462.00        98%

Total Expenditures 6,450,475.00      8,183,600.00    1,733,125.00   79%

Excess Revenues
over Expenditures 7,746,407.00      

Community/YMCA -                      22,000,000.00  22,000,000.00 
Recreation Center



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY NOVEMBER 2018
92%

Actual Budget Variance %

WATER

Revenues 5,358,803.00    2,908,700.00    (2,450,103.00)       184%

Expenditures
Administration 185,881.00       259,800.00       73,919.00             72%
Operations 2,412,580.00    2,951,500.00    538,920.00           82%

2,598,461.00    3,211,300.00    612,839.00           81%

Excess Revenues
over Expenditures 2,760,342.00    



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY NOVEMBER 2018
92.00%

Actual Budget Variance %

WASTEWATER

Revenues 2,002,791.00       1,885,000.00    (117,791.00)     106%

Expenditures
Administration 200,649.00          295,400.00       94,751.00        68%
Operation 886,737.00          1,727,800.00    841,063.00      51%

1,087,386.00       2,023,200.00    935,814.00      54%

Excess Revenues
over Expenditures 915,405.00          



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING NOVEMBER 30, 2018

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/11/2018     01:23PM       PAGE: 3

TAXES

01-01-4010-00 GEN. PROPERTY ACCOUNTS 16,975.68 6,137,891.24 4,250,000.00 (         1,887,891.24) 144.4

01-01-4020-00 SPECIFIC OWNERSHIP TAXES 47,629.49 408,598.01 280,000.00 (            128,598.01) 145.9

01-01-4030-00 FRANCHISE TAXES 2,443.12 413,519.62 395,000.00 (              18,519.62) 104.7

01-01-4040-00 PENALTIES & INTEREST 993.26 2,856.34 3,000.00 143.66 95.2

01-01-4070-00 SALES TAX 379,032.21 3,973,456.82 3,200,000.00 (            773,456.82) 124.2

01-01-4075-00 LODGING TAX 13,087.42 130,026.49 85,000.00 (              45,026.49) 153.0

01-01-4080-00 SEVERANCE TAX .00 295,501.31 50,000.00 (            245,501.31) 591.0

TOTAL TAXES 460,161.18 11,361,849.83 8,263,000.00 (         3,098,849.83) 137.5

LICENSES & PERMITS

01-02-4110-00 LIQUOR LICENSE 86.50 2,906.00 1,800.00 (                1,106.00) 161.4

01-02-4120-00 BUS. LIC. & PERMITS - OTHE 120.00 21,807.68 14,000.00 (                7,807.68) 155.8

01-02-4130-00 BUILDING PERMITS 70,289.82 735,507.99 475,000.00 (            260,507.99) 154.8

01-02-4140-00 DOG LICENSE & PERMITS OTHE 36.00 2,777.00 2,300.00 (                   477.00) 120.7

01-02-4150-00 FINGERPRINTING 5.00 1,223.80 200.00 (                1,023.80) 611.9

TOTAL LICENSES & PERMITS 70,537.32 764,222.47 493,300.00 (            270,922.47) 154.9

INTERGOVERNMENTAL

01-03-4210-00 CIGARETTE TAXES 2,565.45 18,975.90 14,000.00 (                4,975.90) 135.5

01-03-4220-00 HIGHWAY USERS TAX 39,167.84 567,804.12 380,000.00 (            187,804.12) 149.4

01-03-4230-00 ADD. VEH. REG. FEE 6,227.84 56,401.04 45,000.00 (              11,401.04) 125.3

01-03-4240-00 COUNTY ROAD & BRIDGE .00 166,238.68 90,000.00 (              76,238.68) 184.7

TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL 47,961.13 809,419.74 529,000.00 (            280,419.74) 153.0

CHARGES FOR SERVICES

01-04-4310-00 CEMETERY LOTS AND CARE 50.00 40,327.00 22,000.00 (              18,327.00) 183.3

01-04-4320-00 TRASH CHARGES 55,687.85 594,582.81 640,000.00 45,417.19 92.9

01-04-4330-00 OTHER SERVICES 477.70 29,417.39 900.00 (              28,517.39) 3268.6

01-04-4340-00 FISHING PERMITS .00 960.00 600.00 (                   360.00) 160.0

TOTAL CHARGES FOR SERVICES 56,215.55 665,287.20 663,500.00 (                1,787.20) 100.3

FINES

01-05-4315-00 COURT FEES REFUND .00 (                   645.00) .00 645.00 .0

01-05-4410-00 MUNICIPAL COURT FINES & FE 10,987.62 139,544.16 120,000.00 (              19,544.16) 116.3

01-05-4420-00 SURCHARGE 1,615.00 20,627.00 18,000.00 (                2,627.00) 114.6

TOTAL FINES 12,602.62 159,526.16 138,000.00 (              21,526.16) 115.6



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING NOVEMBER 30, 2018

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/11/2018     01:23PM       PAGE: 4

MISCELLANEOUS

01-06-4510-00 COMM. CENTER RENTAL FEES 150.00 13,694.68 11,000.00 (                2,694.68) 124.5

01-06-4530-00 REFUND OF EXPENDITURES .00 27,839.39 5,000.00 (              22,839.39) 556.8

01-06-4570-00 SCHOOL DISTRICT 20,918.41 20,918.41 31,000.00 10,081.59 67.5

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 21,068.41 62,452.48 47,000.00 (              15,452.48) 132.9

EARNINGS ON INVESTMENTS

01-07-4610-00 EARNINGS ON INVESTMENTS 54,671.19 335,003.78 65,000.00 (            270,003.78) 515.4

TOTAL EARNINGS ON INVESTMENTS 54,671.19 335,003.78 65,000.00 (            270,003.78) 515.4

SOURCE 08

01-08-4530-00 DEVELOPERS COST PAYMENT (              15,375.99) 39,119.99 5,000.00 (              34,119.99) 782.4

TOTAL SOURCE 08 (              15,375.99) 39,119.99 5,000.00 (              34,119.99) 782.4

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 707,841.41 14,196,881.65 10,203,800.00 (         3,993,081.65) 139.1



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING NOVEMBER 30, 2018

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/11/2018     01:23PM       PAGE: 5

LEGISLATIVE

01-10-5010-00 BOARD MEMBERS COMPENSATION 1,650.00 17,250.00 22,800.00 5,550.00 75.7

01-10-5050-00 PAYROLL TAXES 126.24 1,319.79 1,800.00 480.21 73.3

01-10-5070-00 WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION .00 641.22 1,200.00 558.78 53.4

01-10-6511-00 TRAINING .00 1,066.00 3,000.00 1,934.00 35.5

01-10-6522-00 INSURANCE .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .00 100.0

01-10-6544-03 EQUIPMENT/SOFTWARE - IPADS 90.71 1,608.28 2,500.00 891.72 64.3

01-10-8016-00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES .00 798.73 4,000.00 3,201.27 20.0

01-10-9028-00 COUNCIL OUTREACH .00 321.27 1,500.00 1,178.73 21.4

TOTAL LEGISLATIVE 1,866.95 24,005.29 37,800.00 13,794.71 63.5

JUDICIAL

01-15-5011-00 SAL-JUDGE 1,500.00 15,262.50 17,000.00 1,737.50 89.8

01-15-5012-00 SAL-PROS. ATT. 2,490.00 26,307.33 32,000.00 5,692.67 82.2

01-15-6505-00 OFFICE EXPENSES 39.96 919.37 1,000.00 80.63 91.9

01-15-8016-00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES .00 .00 100.00 100.00 .0

TOTAL JUDICIAL 4,029.96 42,489.20 50,100.00 7,610.80 84.8

ELECTIONS

01-20-6413-00 PUBLISHING .00 118.04 700.00 581.96 16.9

01-20-6526-00 SUPPLIES .00 17,694.32 17,000.00 (                   694.32) 104.1

01-20-8017-00 ELECTION JUDGES .00 1,048.52 900.00 (                   148.52) 116.5

TOTAL ELECTIONS .00 18,860.88 18,600.00 (                   260.88) 101.4



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING NOVEMBER 30, 2018

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/11/2018     01:23PM       PAGE: 6

ADMINISTRATION

01-25-5010-00 SALARIES 5,778.95 69,317.70 97,000.00 27,682.30 71.5

01-25-5010-03 OVERTIME .00 .00 600.00 600.00 .0

01-25-5011-00 PART TIME OFFICE 342.24 4,020.41 7,500.00 3,479.59 53.6

01-25-5012-00 HOURLY COMMUNICATIONS STAFF 1,272.53 12,161.09 18,000.00 5,838.91 67.6

01-25-5015-00 CLEANING SALARIES 216.67 2,366.70 3,500.00 1,133.30 67.6

01-25-5025-00 MANAGER 7,946.90 57,015.01 57,100.00 84.99 99.9

01-25-5050-00 PAYROLL TAXES 889.37 10,103.15 14,300.00 4,196.85 70.7

01-25-5060-00 RETIREMENT FUND 1,570.36 9,807.23 12,800.00 2,992.77 76.6

01-25-5065-00 HEALTH INSURANCE 1,829.78 20,008.28 33,000.00 12,991.72 60.6

01-25-5070-00 WORKMAN'S COMPENSATION .00 641.22 1,000.00 358.78 64.1

01-25-6010-00 UTILITIES 368.21 3,638.50 6,000.00 2,361.50 60.6

01-25-6505-00 OFFICE EXPENSE 1,189.86 5,494.39 6,700.00 1,205.61 82.0

01-25-6506-00 UTILITY BILL MAILING 657.77 6,967.94 8,300.00 1,332.06 84.0

01-25-6510-00 TELEPHONE 135.75 1,381.45 2,000.00 618.55 69.1

01-25-6511-00 TRAINING .00 20.00 1,000.00 980.00 2.0

01-25-6513-00 PUBLISHING .00 765.78 5,000.00 4,234.22 15.3

01-25-6515-00 DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS 139.38 2,567.00 2,900.00 333.00 88.5

01-25-6518-00 CLEANING SUPPLIES 101.06 896.76 1,700.00 803.24 52.8

01-25-6520-00 MILEAGE & EXPENSES 54.00 163.05 2,000.00 1,836.95 8.2

01-25-6522-00 INSURANCE & BONDS .00 13,208.75 15,700.00 2,491.25 84.1

01-25-6544-05 SOFTWARE .00 .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 .0

01-25-6544-07 MISC. OFFICE EQPT. .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

01-25-7020-00 MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS .00 492.58 3,800.00 3,307.42 13.0

01-25-8010-00 AUDIT .00 2,500.00 3,000.00 500.00 83.3

01-25-8012-00 COMPUTER PROFESSIONAL SERV 894.05 6,176.30 10,500.00 4,323.70 58.8

01-25-8014-00 LEGAL 6,928.60 28,939.40 42,000.00 13,060.60 68.9

01-25-8015-00 TAPING MEETINGS 530.68 4,860.12 7,000.00 2,139.88 69.4

01-25-8016-00 SALARY STUDY FEES .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

01-25-8017-00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

01-25-8019-00 TREASURER'S FEES 261.51 86,728.40 59,000.00 (              27,728.40) 147.0

01-25-9028-00 COMMUNICATIONS .00 .00 700.00 700.00 .0

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 31,107.67 350,241.21 429,100.00 78,858.79 81.6



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING NOVEMBER 30, 2018

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/11/2018     01:23PM       PAGE: 7

PLANNING & ZONING

01-30-5010-00 SALARIES 9,382.00 112,403.58 132,000.00 19,596.42 85.2

01-30-5050-00 PAYROLL TAXES 703.98 8,448.16 10,000.00 1,551.84 84.5

01-30-5060-00 RETIREMENT FUND 866.48 10,381.09 12,100.00 1,718.91 85.8

01-30-5065-00 HEALTH INSURANCE 1,419.38 15,534.91 26,000.00 10,465.09 59.8

01-30-5070-00 WORKMENS COMPENSATION .00 641.22 1,700.00 1,058.78 37.7

01-30-6010-00 UTILITIES 177.29 1,751.90 3,000.00 1,248.10 58.4

01-30-6505-00 OFFICE SUPPLIES 253.93 1,226.58 2,500.00 1,273.42 49.1

01-30-6510-00 TELEPHONE 135.75 1,339.96 1,400.00 60.04 95.7

01-30-6511-00 TRAINING .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

01-30-6513-00 PUBLISH/RECORD .00 91.80 200.00 108.20 45.9

01-30-6515-00 DUES/SUBSCRIPTIONS .00 .00 800.00 800.00 .0

01-30-6520-00 MILEAGE & EXPENSES 38.83 141.78 100.00 (                     41.78) 141.8

01-30-6522-00 INSURANCE AND BONDS .00 2,800.00 3,000.00 200.00 93.3

01-30-6544-04 MACHINERY AND EQPT. .00 .00 300.00 300.00 .0

01-30-8012-00 COMPUTER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 156.80 1,724.80 2,000.00 275.20 86.2

01-30-8016-00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES .00 874.85 15,500.00 14,625.15 5.6

01-30-8017-00 NORTH FRONT RANGE MPO .00 8,982.00 6,900.00 (                2,082.00) 130.2

TOTAL PLANNING & ZONING 13,134.44 166,342.63 218,000.00 51,657.37 76.3



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING NOVEMBER 30, 2018

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/11/2018     01:23PM       PAGE: 8

POLICE

01-35-5010-00 SALARIES 93,580.73 1,189,179.98 1,375,000.00 185,820.02 86.5

01-35-5010-03 OVERTIME PAY (                     99.87) 5,250.72 13,500.00 8,249.28 38.9

01-35-5013-00 CLERICAL SALARIES 2,889.16 34,601.33 37,700.00 3,098.67 91.8

01-35-5015-00 PART-TIME SALARIES 4,550.93 49,364.27 59,000.00 9,635.73 83.7

01-35-5050-00 PAYROLL TAXES 7,524.97 95,213.28 114,000.00 18,786.72 83.5

01-35-5060-00 RETIREMENT 5,437.32 69,203.18 80,000.00 10,796.82 86.5

01-35-5065-00 HEALTH INSURANCE 20,226.81 235,284.78 341,000.00 105,715.22 69.0

01-35-5070-00 WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION .00 25,648.80 40,000.00 14,351.20 64.1

01-35-6010-00 UTILITIES 914.03 12,082.22 14,000.00 1,917.78 86.3

01-35-6505-00 OFFICE EXPENSE 654.37 7,482.50 6,800.00 (                   682.50) 110.0

01-35-6510-00 TELEPHONE 895.00 6,652.49 10,500.00 3,847.51 63.4

01-35-6511-00 TRAINING 604.84 9,945.01 11,000.00 1,054.99 90.4

01-35-6513-00 PUBLISHING .00 364.79 1,500.00 1,135.21 24.3

01-35-6515-00 DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS .00 335.00 1,200.00 865.00 27.9

01-35-6518-00 CLEANING SERVICES 591.32 7,137.16 8,500.00 1,362.84 84.0

01-35-6522-00 INSURANCE AND BONDS .00 49,000.00 50,500.00 1,500.00 97.0

01-35-6524-00 GAS AND OIL 4,330.91 33,067.65 26,400.00 (                6,667.65) 125.3

01-35-6526-00 OPERATING SUPPLIES 457.65 5,358.97 6,500.00 1,141.03 82.5

01-35-6527-00 UNIFORMS AND CLEANING 450.00 7,762.89 9,000.00 1,237.11 86.3

01-35-6528-00 WELD COUNTY MAINT. AGREEME .00 26,391.99 26,500.00 108.01 99.6

01-35-6544-02 COMPUTER SYSTEMS .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0

01-35-6544-04 RADAR GUNS 2,979.63 3,712.63 2,500.00 (                1,212.63) 148.5

01-35-6544-06 VESTS .00 1,558.00 5,000.00 3,442.00 31.2

01-35-6544-07 CAMERA & INVESTIGATION EQPT. .00 722.49 3,500.00 2,777.51 20.6

01-35-6544-09 SHOOTING RANGE SUPPLIES .00 2,951.67 3,600.00 648.33 82.0

01-35-6544-10 OFFICE IMPROVEMENTS .00 959.95 3,000.00 2,040.05 32.0

01-35-6544-11 POLICE EQUIPMENT 1,785.10 7,610.18 10,000.00 2,389.82 76.1

01-35-7010-00 BLDG. REPAIR & MAINT. .00 2,844.89 8,000.00 5,155.11 35.6

01-35-7020-00 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE 1,662.98 15,239.96 13,500.00 (                1,739.96) 112.9

01-35-8012-00 COMP. PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 292.19 9,132.66 10,000.00 867.34 91.3

01-35-8014-00 LEGAL .00 279.00 2,500.00 2,221.00 11.2

01-35-8016-00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 2,464.11 7,603.64 5,000.00 (                2,603.64) 152.1

01-35-8017-00 JUVENILE ASSESSMENT CENTER .00 5,340.00 5,400.00 60.00 98.9

01-35-8021-00 COMP. LINK TO RECORDS 894.39 10,449.60 10,500.00 50.40 99.5

01-35-9022-00 JAIL FEES .00 295.02 1,500.00 1,204.98 19.7

01-35-9028-00 COMMUNITY SERVICES .00 2,200.54 2,000.00 (                   200.54) 110.0

01-35-9028-01 TASK FORCE .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .00 100.0

01-35-9028-03 RECORDS CONTRACT .00 4,826.63 9,000.00 4,173.37 53.6

TOTAL POLICE 153,086.57 1,947,053.87 2,332,100.00 385,046.13 83.5



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING NOVEMBER 30, 2018

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/11/2018     01:23PM       PAGE: 9

PROTECTIVE INSPECTIONS

01-40-5010-00 SALARIES 2,562.69 30,702.88 37,600.00 6,897.12 81.7

01-40-5050-00 PAYROLL TAXES 191.06 2,294.10 2,900.00 605.90 79.1

01-40-5060-00 RETIREMENT 108.54 1,300.39 1,600.00 299.61 81.3

01-40-5065-00 HEALTH INSURANCE 506.79 5,541.03 7,000.00 1,458.97 79.2

01-40-5070-00 WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION .00 641.22 1,400.00 758.78 45.8

01-40-6010-00 UTILITIES 231.81 2,290.67 3,900.00 1,609.33 58.7

01-40-6505-00 OFFICE EXPENSE 38.30 731.99 3,800.00 3,068.01 19.3

01-40-6510-00 TELEPHONE 135.75 1,339.93 1,600.00 260.07 83.8

01-40-6511-00 TRAINING .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

01-40-6513-00 PUBLISHING .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

01-40-6515-00 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS .00 25.00 200.00 175.00 12.5

01-40-6518-00 CLEANING & SUPPLIES 101.05 806.74 1,000.00 193.26 80.7

01-40-6522-00 INSURANCE AND BONDS .00 7,200.00 8,700.00 1,500.00 82.8

01-40-6526-00 OPERATING SUPPLIES .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

01-40-7020-00 REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 161.83 782.01 2,000.00 1,217.99 39.1

01-40-8012-00 COMP. PROF. SERVICES 276.80 3,171.37 3,600.00 428.63 88.1

01-40-8014-00 LEGAL .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

01-40-8016-00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 9,400.00 94,000.00 127,000.00 33,000.00 74.0

TOTAL PROTECTIVE INSPECTIONS 13,714.62 150,827.33 205,800.00 54,972.67 73.3



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING NOVEMBER 30, 2018

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/11/2018     01:24PM       PAGE: 10

STREETS

01-45-5010-00 SALARIES 17,519.53 232,706.05 303,000.00 70,293.95 76.8

01-45-5010-03 OVERTIME .00 698.52 7,000.00 6,301.48 10.0

01-45-5015-00 PART-TIME SALARIES .00 13,170.15 15,000.00 1,829.85 87.8

01-45-5050-00 PAYROLL TAXES 1,298.14 18,366.29 26,000.00 7,633.71 70.6

01-45-5060-00 RETIREMENT FUND 1,085.97 14,124.23 19,000.00 4,875.77 74.3

01-45-5065-00 HEALTH INSURANCE 4,087.83 61,677.75 82,000.00 20,322.25 75.2

01-45-5070-00 WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION .00 15,389.28 19,100.00 3,710.72 80.6

01-45-6010-00 UTILITIES 406.49 5,948.64 10,000.00 4,051.36 59.5

01-45-6015-00 UTILITIES - STREET LIGHTIN 15,456.98 154,410.91 243,000.00 88,589.09 63.5

01-45-6505-00 OFFICE EXPENSE 148.95 148.95 600.00 451.05 24.8

01-45-6510-00 TELEPHONE 404.74 3,697.23 3,600.00 (                     97.23) 102.7

01-45-6511-00 TRAINING .00 370.00 1,500.00 1,130.00 24.7

01-45-6515-00 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

01-45-6518-00 CLEANING SUPPLIES 58.00 1,086.28 1,600.00 513.72 67.9

01-45-6522-00 INSURANCE AND BONDS .00 28,560.91 29,700.00 1,139.09 96.2

01-45-6524-00 GAS & OIL 2,960.48 16,738.97 14,000.00 (                2,738.97) 119.6

01-45-6526-00 OPERATING SUPPLIES 884.67 5,613.56 4,500.00 (                1,113.56) 124.8

01-45-6530-00 SNOW AND ICE REMOVAL 324.01 10,876.48 35,000.00 24,123.52 31.1

01-45-6532-00 TRASH SERVICE 55,616.84 547,100.79 640,000.00 92,899.21 85.5

01-45-6534-00 WEED CONTROL .00 852.18 2,500.00 1,647.82 34.1

01-45-6536-00 STREET SIGNS 378.04 2,068.24 3,500.00 1,431.76 59.1

01-45-6544-03 EQUIPMENT .00 .00 4,000.00 4,000.00 .0

01-45-6544-06 HOLIDAY DECORATIONS .00 1,406.86 7,500.00 6,093.14 18.8

01-45-6544-07 TOOLS .00 555.98 2,500.00 1,944.02 22.2

01-45-6544-09 SAFETY EQUIPMENT 326.89 1,193.77 4,000.00 2,806.23 29.8

01-45-7020-00 REP & MAINT - EQUIP & BLDG 3,076.59 15,572.17 25,000.00 9,427.83 62.3

01-45-7030-00 REPAIR & MAINT. BLDGS. .00 951.24 3,000.00 2,048.76 31.7

01-45-8012-00 COMPUTER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 219.95 2,009.55 1,200.00 (                   809.55) 167.5

01-45-8016-00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 30.95 2,862.86 3,000.00 137.14 95.4

TOTAL STREETS 104,285.05 1,158,157.84 1,512,300.00 354,142.16 76.6



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING NOVEMBER 30, 2018

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/11/2018     01:24PM       PAGE: 11

CEMETERY

01-50-5015-00 SALARIES .00 7,615.83 12,000.00 4,384.17 63.5

01-50-5050-00 PAYROLL TAXES .00 582.67 1,000.00 417.33 58.3

01-50-5070-00 WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION .00 2,161.80 1,500.00 (                   661.80) 144.1

01-50-6513-00 PUBLISHING .00 .00 300.00 300.00 .0

01-50-6522-00 INSURANCE .00 2,200.00 2,200.00 .00 100.0

01-50-6524-00 GAS & OIL .00 101.41 1,900.00 1,798.59 5.3

01-50-6526-00 SUPPLIES 27.66 840.15 2,200.00 1,359.85 38.2

01-50-6533-00 TREE TRIMMING .00 4,000.00 4,000.00 .00 100.0

01-50-6534-00 FERTILIZER & WEED CONTROL .00 4,702.25 5,000.00 297.75 94.1

01-50-6544-03 SPINTRIMMER .00 71.58 800.00 728.42 9.0

01-50-6544-05 TOOLS .00 78.01 400.00 321.99 19.5

01-50-6544-06 TREES .00 1,230.00 2,000.00 770.00 61.5

01-50-7020-00 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE .00 3,361.72 3,500.00 138.28 96.1

01-50-7025-00 SPRINKLER REPAIR .00 2,242.63 3,700.00 1,457.37 60.6

01-50-8016-00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

TOTAL CEMETERY 27.66 29,188.05 41,000.00 11,811.95 71.2

ANIMAL CONTROL

01-55-5010-00 SALARIES 3,818.00 45,747.02 50,000.00 4,252.98 91.5

01-55-5010-03 OVERTIME .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

01-55-5050-00 PAYROLL TAXES 284.60 3,417.65 3,900.00 482.35 87.6

01-55-5060-00 RET BEN 161.72 1,937.71 2,200.00 262.29 88.1

01-55-5065-00 HEALTH BEN 759.97 8,308.63 12,000.00 3,691.37 69.2

01-55-5070-00 WORKMENS COMPENSATION .00 641.22 1,800.00 1,158.78 35.6

01-55-6522-00 INSURANCE .00 3,800.00 4,100.00 300.00 92.7

01-55-6524-00 GAS AND OIL 247.90 2,313.40 2,000.00 (                   313.40) 115.7

01-55-6526-00 SUPPLIES .00 224.76 1,200.00 975.24 18.7

01-55-7020-00 REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 85.00 1,368.02 1,500.00 131.98 91.2

01-55-7030-00 WEED/NUISANCE CONTROL (                   708.22) 3,318.21 9,000.00 5,681.79 36.9

01-55-8016-00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES .00 5,350.00 7,000.00 1,650.00 76.4

TOTAL ANIMAL CONTROL 4,648.97 76,426.62 95,200.00 18,773.38 80.3

SENIOR COORDINATOR PROGRAM

01-60-5015-00 PART-TIME SALARIES 3,184.16 38,156.07 41,800.00 3,643.93 91.3

01-60-5050-00 PAYROLL TAXES 236.12 2,837.04 3,200.00 362.96 88.7

01-60-5065-00 HEALTH INSURANCE 695.71 7,606.43 8,500.00 893.57 89.5

01-60-5070-00 WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION .00 641.22 1,200.00 558.78 53.4

01-60-6010-00 UTILITIES 300.10 3,834.40 4,500.00 665.60 85.2

01-60-6510-00 TELEPHONE 118.10 1,183.25 1,500.00 316.75 78.9

01-60-6520-00 MILEAGE 193.91 2,308.36 3,200.00 891.64 72.1

01-60-6522-00 INSURANCE .00 4,304.75 4,000.00 (                   304.75) 107.6

01-60-7020-00 REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 375.20 4,208.05 5,700.00 1,491.95 73.8

TOTAL SENIOR COORDINATOR PROGRAM 5,103.30 65,079.57 73,600.00 8,520.43 88.4



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING NOVEMBER 30, 2018

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/11/2018     01:24PM       PAGE: 12

PARKS

01-65-5015-00 PART-TIME SALARIES .00 15,192.90 22,000.00 6,807.10 69.1

01-65-5050-00 PAYROLL TAXES .00 1,018.70 1,800.00 781.30 56.6

01-65-5070-00 WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION .00 1,282.44 2,000.00 717.56 64.1

01-65-6010-00 UTILITIES 242.35 2,455.64 7,000.00 4,544.36 35.1

01-65-6511-00 TRAINING .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

01-65-6522-00 INSURANCE AND BONDS .00 2,400.00 2,400.00 .00 100.0

01-65-6524-00 GAS AND OIL 82.29 1,792.01 1,800.00 7.99 99.6

01-65-6526-00 SUPPLIES .00 1,283.75 2,500.00 1,216.25 51.4

01-65-6534-00 FERTILIZER AND WEED CONTROL 3,295.00 12,964.02 13,000.00 35.98 99.7

01-65-6542-00 PORTA-LETS .00 1,186.92 2,200.00 1,013.08 54.0

01-65-6544-01 MOWER .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

01-65-6544-02 SPIN TRIMMER .00 767.91 800.00 32.09 96.0

01-65-7020-00 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE 76.00 5,580.28 5,000.00 (                   580.28) 111.6

01-65-7025-00 SPRINKLER REPAIRS 62.98 3,820.51 5,000.00 1,179.49 76.4

TOTAL PARKS 3,758.62 49,745.08 67,000.00 17,254.92 74.3

LIBRARY

01-70-7000-00 TOWN SUPPORT-LIBRARY 37,500.00 412,500.00 450,000.00 37,500.00 91.7

TOTAL LIBRARY 37,500.00 412,500.00 450,000.00 37,500.00 91.7

DEPARTMENT 75

01-75-6526-00 COMMUNITY CENTER SUPPLIES 144.19 1,439.34 6,000.00 4,560.66 24.0

01-75-7020-00 COMMUNITY CENTER REPAIR 339.03 5,588.87 9,000.00 3,411.13 62.1

01-75-7025-00 COMMUNITY CENTER UTILITIES 300.09 4,054.23 6,500.00 2,445.77 62.4

01-75-7031-00 DOWNTOWN BEAUTIFICATION 12.59 11,497.74 27,000.00 15,502.26 42.6

01-75-7040-00 OWNERS REP/YMCA - REC. CENTER 24,636.00 59,716.75 250,000.00 190,283.25 23.9

01-75-7041-00 GRANT MATCH .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

01-75-7051-00 MUSEUM IMPR. .00 18,000.00 25,000.00 7,000.00 72.0

01-75-7054-00 TOWN HALL IMPROVEMENTS 449.47 2,323.90 8,000.00 5,676.10 29.1

01-75-7055-00 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CONT. .00 7,000.00 7,000.00 .00 100.0

01-75-7056-00 CITIZEN/BUSINESS OUTREACH COOR .00 .00 12,000.00 12,000.00 .0

01-75-7066-00 WEB SITE CONSULTANT .00 4,046.99 8,900.00 4,853.01 45.5

01-75-7070-00 BARBEQUE DAYS CONTRIBUTION .00 30,000.00 30,000.00 .00 100.0

01-75-7080-00 MOSQUITO SPRAYING .00 18,414.00 19,000.00 586.00 96.9

01-75-7090-00 INSURANCE DEDUCTIBLES 1,529.72 3,661.09 17,000.00 13,338.91 21.5

01-75-7100-00 SEPARATION BENEFITS .00 .00 365,400.00 365,400.00 .0

01-75-7125-00 GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 389.00 4,186.97 16,000.00 11,813.03 26.2

01-75-7129-00 NEWSLETTER/COMMUNICATION .00 2,010.51 10,000.00 7,989.49 20.1

01-75-7130-00 TOWN HALL MAINT. AGREEMENT 133.73 3,393.35 5,000.00 1,606.65 67.9

01-75-7131-00 SAFETY AWARD PROGRAM .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0

01-75-7133-00 DOWNTOWN FACADE GRANT PROGRAM .00 7,485.37 5,000.00 (                2,485.37) 149.7

01-75-7137-00 402 INTERCHANGE BEN. ANALYSIS .00 .00 45,000.00 45,000.00 .0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT 75 27,933.82 182,819.11 879,300.00 696,480.89 20.8



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING NOVEMBER 30, 2018

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/11/2018     01:24PM       PAGE: 13

TRANSFERS OUT

01-80-7040-00 TRANSFER WATER FUND 18,252.48 119,065.96 187,700.00 68,634.04 63.4

01-80-7050-00 TRANSFER - CONTINGENT FUND .00 200,000.00 225,000.00 25,000.00 88.9

01-80-7056-00 COMMUNITY RECREATION CENTER 11,250.00 11,250.00 22,000,000.00 21,988,750.00 .1

01-80-7080-00 TRANSFER TO DEVELOPERS COST .00 .00 25,000.00 25,000.00 .0

01-80-7081-00 FUNDING I-25 IMPROVEMENTS .00 13,676.73 16,000.00 2,323.27 85.5

01-80-7110-00 SALES TAX REFUND 229,572.14 432,745.29 320,000.00 (            112,745.29) 135.2

01-80-7115-00 TRANSFER TO EQPT. REPLACEMENT  500,000.00 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 .00 100.0

TOTAL TRANSFERS OUT 759,074.62 1,776,737.98 23,773,700.00 21,996,962.02 7.5

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 1,159,272.25 6,450,474.66 30,183,600.00 23,733,125.34 21.4

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES (            451,430.84) 7,746,406.99 (       19,979,800.00) (       27,726,206.99) 38.8



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING NOVEMBER 30, 2018

WATER FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/11/2018     01:24PM       PAGE: 15

02-00-4310-00 WATER CHARGES 109,345.09 2,823,232.67 2,500,000.00 (            323,232.67) 112.9

02-00-4320-00 WATER TAP FEES 15,341.89 499,369.85 .00 (            499,369.85) .0

02-00-4322-00 RAW WATER DEV. FEE 93,218.70 883,489.51 .00 (            883,489.51) .0

02-00-4325-00 WATER REFUNDS (                1,229.38) (              13,419.11) .00 13,419.11 .0

02-00-4330-00 MISCELLANEOUS 18,631.00 834,663.50 150,000.00 (            684,663.50) 556.4

02-00-4610-00 EARNINGS ON INVESTMENTS 43,100.12 212,400.89 71,000.00 (            141,400.89) 299.2

02-00-4830-00 TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND 18,252.48 119,065.96 187,700.00 68,634.04 63.4

TOTAL SOURCE 00 296,659.90 5,358,803.27 2,908,700.00 (         2,450,103.27) 184.2

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 296,659.90 5,358,803.27 2,908,700.00 (         2,450,103.27) 184.2



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING NOVEMBER 30, 2018

WATER FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/11/2018     01:24PM       PAGE: 16

ADMINISTRATION

02-25-5010-00 SALARIES 3,057.28 38,808.52 65,000.00 26,191.48 59.7

02-25-5010-03 OVERTIME .00 .00 300.00 300.00 .0

02-25-5015-00 PART-TIME SALARIES 342.24 4,020.41 7,500.00 3,479.59 53.6

02-25-5020-00 JANITORIAL SALARIES 216.67 2,366.70 2,700.00 333.30 87.7

02-25-5025-00 MANAGER 4,093.86 29,371.39 29,700.00 328.61 98.9

02-25-5050-00 PAYROLL TAXES 425.70 5,094.34 8,000.00 2,905.66 63.7

02-25-5060-00 RETIREMENT FUND 777.74 5,330.80 8,100.00 2,769.20 65.8

02-25-5065-00 HEALTH INSURANCE 1,056.51 12,075.98 16,000.00 3,924.02 75.5

02-25-5070-00 WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION .00 641.22 1,000.00 358.78 64.1

02-25-6010-00 UTILITIES 218.20 2,156.14 3,500.00 1,343.86 61.6

02-25-6505-00 OFFICE EXPENSE 189.10 1,110.89 3,600.00 2,489.11 30.9

02-25-6506-00 UTILITY BILL MAILING 657.77 6,967.91 8,300.00 1,332.09 84.0

02-25-6507-00 BILL PRESENTMENT 2,375.39 5,337.91 10,000.00 4,662.09 53.4

02-25-6510-00 TELEPHONE 135.75 1,339.92 1,700.00 360.08 78.8

02-25-6511-00 TRAINING & MEETINGS .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

02-25-6513-00 PUBLISHING .00 27.00 1,000.00 973.00 2.7

02-25-6515-00 DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS .00 2,229.00 2,700.00 471.00 82.6

02-25-6518-00 CLEANING SUPPLIES 101.06 1,006.32 1,000.00 (                       6.32) 100.6

02-25-6520-00 MILEAGE & EXPENSES .00 175.89 500.00 324.11 35.2

02-25-6522-00 INSURANCE & BONDS .00 6,300.00 7,000.00 700.00 90.0

02-25-6544-02 CAPITAL OUTLAY - COMP. SOFT .00 2,700.00 3,200.00 500.00 84.4

02-25-6544-04 COMPUTER .00 .00 1,200.00 1,200.00 .0

02-25-6544-07 MISCELLANEOUS OFFICE .00 .00 300.00 300.00 .0

02-25-7020-00 REPAIR & MAINT. .00 555.51 1,000.00 444.49 55.6

02-25-8010-00 AUDIT .00 2,500.00 3,000.00 500.00 83.3

02-25-8011-00 PROF. SERV. - WATER COUNSEL 2,927.54 11,623.99 30,000.00 18,376.01 38.8

02-25-8012-00 COMP. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 294.05 8,203.71 8,300.00 96.29 98.8

02-25-8014-00 LEGAL 728.50 11,631.75 6,000.00 (                5,631.75) 193.9

02-25-8016-00 SALARY STUDY FEES .00 .00 700.00 700.00 .0

02-25-8017-00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 1,229.00 24,292.48 25,000.00 707.52 97.2

02-25-9028-00 COMMUNICATIONS .00 13.50 3,000.00 2,986.50 .5

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 18,826.36 185,881.28 259,800.00 73,918.72 71.6



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING NOVEMBER 30, 2018

WATER FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/11/2018     01:24PM       PAGE: 17

OPERATIONS - WATER FUND

02-70-5010-00 SALARIES 14,959.88 171,071.42 235,000.00 63,928.58 72.8

02-70-5010-03 OVERTIME 257.97 3,141.71 10,000.00 6,858.29 31.4

02-70-5015-00 PART TIME SALARIES .00 2,177.70 2,600.00 422.30 83.8

02-70-5050-00 PAYROLL TAXES 1,118.47 12,982.39 18,900.00 5,917.61 68.7

02-70-5060-00 RETIREMENT FUND 726.73 8,030.23 13,500.00 5,469.77 59.5

02-70-5065-00 HEALTH INSURANCE 4,157.21 45,301.01 65,000.00 19,698.99 69.7

02-70-5070-00 WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION .00 6,934.35 8,000.00 1,065.65 86.7

02-70-6010-00 UTILITIES 20,829.66 188,753.96 205,000.00 16,246.04 92.1

02-70-6510-00 TELEPHONE 595.25 5,972.39 8,300.00 2,327.61 72.0

02-70-6511-00 TRAINING .00 2,286.48 4,000.00 1,713.52 57.2

02-70-6518-00 CLEANING SUPPLIES 58.00 980.18 1,600.00 619.82 61.3

02-70-6522-00 INSURANCE .00 27,255.00 27,400.00 145.00 99.5

02-70-6524-00 GAS AND OIL 1,271.11 10,440.71 8,800.00 (                1,640.71) 118.6

02-70-6526-00 CHEMICALS 19,572.01 154,604.87 160,000.00 5,395.13 96.6

02-70-6527-00 SUPPLIES-SAFETY EQPT. 35.97 670.92 2,500.00 1,829.08 26.8

02-70-6528-00 OPERATING SUPPLIES 1,181.37 5,313.08 10,400.00 5,086.92 51.1

02-70-6544-01 METER UPGRADE 243.74 40,756.74 75,000.00 34,243.26 54.3

02-70-6544-02 TOOLS 53.72 1,010.09 6,500.00 5,489.91 15.5

02-70-6544-07 TESTING EQUIPMENT .00 .00 4,200.00 4,200.00 .0

02-70-6544-08 VEHICLE-PURCHASE 18,595.00 18,595.00 18,500.00 (                     95.00) 100.5

02-70-6544-13 WATER PLANT IMPROVEMENTS .00 23,012.61 65,000.00 41,987.39 35.4

02-70-6544-19 DAF SATURATOR SYSTEM .00 .00 65,000.00 65,000.00 .0

02-70-6544-22 WATERLINE REPLACEMENT .00 .00 33,000.00 33,000.00 .0

02-70-6544-29 INSTRUMENTATION UPGRADES .00 2,601.22 50,000.00 47,398.78 5.2

02-70-6544-36 FIRE HYDRANT REPAIRS .00 439.70 42,000.00 41,560.30 1.1

02-70-7015-00 R&M WATERLINES .00 5,046.62 30,000.00 24,953.38 16.8

02-70-7020-00 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 10,703.61 25,578.41 80,000.00 54,421.59 32.0

02-70-7022-00 VEHICLE REPAIRS 45.00 2,861.42 3,500.00 638.58 81.8

02-70-7030-00 PURCHASED WATER 1,485,000.00 1,500,029.00 1,512,700.00 12,671.00 99.2

02-70-7031-00 CWCWD EMERGENCY CONNECTION 586.00 5,902.90 7,100.00 1,197.10 83.1

02-70-7035-00 WATER ASSESMENT .00 111,608.25 118,000.00 6,391.75 94.6

02-70-7090-00 INSURANCE DEDUCTIBLES .00 4,190.27 10,000.00 5,809.73 41.9

02-70-8012-00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 5,471.52 25,031.58 50,000.00 24,968.42 50.1

TOTAL OPERATIONS - WATER FUND 1,585,462.22 2,412,580.21 2,951,500.00 538,919.79 81.7

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 1,604,288.58 2,598,461.49 3,211,300.00 612,838.51 80.9

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES (         1,307,628.68) 2,760,341.78 (            302,600.00) (         3,062,941.78) 912.2



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING NOVEMBER 30, 2018

SEWER FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/11/2018     01:24PM       PAGE: 19

03-00-4310-00 SEWER CHARGES 163,485.68 1,755,181.01 1,825,000.00 69,818.99 96.2

03-00-4320-00 SEWER TAP FEES 4,300.00 154,300.00 .00 (            154,300.00) .0

03-00-4330-00 MISCELLANEOUS 3,233.83 21,257.18 10,000.00 (              11,257.18) 212.6

03-00-4610-00 EARNINGS ON INVESTMENTS 15,702.32 72,053.02 50,000.00 (              22,053.02) 144.1

TOTAL SOURCE 00 186,721.83 2,002,791.21 1,885,000.00 (            117,791.21) 106.3

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 186,721.83 2,002,791.21 1,885,000.00 (            117,791.21) 106.3



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING NOVEMBER 30, 2018

SEWER FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/11/2018     01:24PM       PAGE: 20

PERSONNEL

03-25-5010-00 SALARIES 4,427.30 51,050.47 80,000.00 28,949.53 63.8

03-25-5010-03 OVERTIME .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

03-25-5015-00 PART-TIME SALARIES 342.24 4,020.41 7,500.00 3,479.59 53.6

03-25-5020-00 JANITORIAL SALARIES 216.66 2,366.60 2,600.00 233.40 91.0

03-25-5025-00 MANAGER SALARIES 7,946.92 57,015.24 57,100.00 84.76 99.9

03-25-5050-00 PAYROLL TAXES 691.02 7,806.69 11,200.00 3,393.31 69.7

03-25-5060-00 RETIREMENT FUND 1,394.79 8,707.97 11,600.00 2,892.03 75.1

03-25-5065-00 HEALTH INSURANCE 1,580.61 16,760.90 24,200.00 7,439.10 69.3

03-25-5070-00 WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION .00 641.22 800.00 158.78 80.2

03-25-6010-00 UTILITIES - TOWN HALL 272.75 2,695.19 4,400.00 1,704.81 61.3

03-25-6505-00 OFFICE EXPENSES .00 494.54 3,200.00 2,705.46 15.5

03-25-6506-00 UTILITY BILL MAILING 657.76 6,967.86 7,800.00 832.14 89.3

03-25-6507-00 ON LINE BILL PRESENTMENT .00 .00 8,000.00 8,000.00 .0

03-25-6510-00 TELEPHONE 135.75 1,339.92 1,800.00 460.08 74.4

03-25-6511-00 TRAINING & MEETINGS .00 .00 700.00 700.00 .0

03-25-6515-00 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

03-25-6518-00 CLEANING SUPPLIES 101.05 1,101.12 1,100.00 (                       1.12) 100.1

03-25-6520-00 MILEAGE & EXPENSES .00 141.97 500.00 358.03 28.4

03-25-6522-00 INSURANCE & BONDS .00 6,500.00 7,200.00 700.00 90.3

03-25-6544-02 COMPUTER SOFTWARE .00 .00 3,200.00 3,200.00 .0

03-25-6544-04 CAPITAL OUTLAY - COMPUTER .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

03-25-6544-07 MISCELLANEOUS OFFICE .00 .00 400.00 400.00 .0

03-25-7020-00 REPAIR & MAINTENANCE .00 458.34 800.00 341.66 57.3

03-25-8010-00 AUDIT .00 2,000.00 5,000.00 3,000.00 40.0

03-25-8012-00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 294.05 7,376.05 7,000.00 (                   376.05) 105.4

03-25-8014-00 LEGAL .00 3,638.00 16,000.00 12,362.00 22.7

03-25-8016-00 SALARY STUDY .00 .00 800.00 800.00 .0

03-25-8017-00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - ENG. 1,416.40 19,566.40 30,000.00 10,433.60 65.2

TOTAL PERSONNEL 19,477.30 200,648.89 295,400.00 94,751.11 67.9



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING NOVEMBER 30, 2018

SEWER FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/11/2018     01:24PM       PAGE: 21

OPERATIONS - SEWER FUND

03-70-5010-00 SALARIES 18,284.28 202,175.52 280,000.00 77,824.48 72.2

03-70-5010-03 OVERTIME PAY 315.29 3,727.59 10,000.00 6,272.41 37.3

03-70-5050-00 PAYROLL TAXES 1,367.10 15,141.17 22,200.00 7,058.83 68.2

03-70-5060-00 RETIREMENT FUND 888.21 9,814.33 16,500.00 6,685.67 59.5

03-70-5065-00 HEALTH INSURANCE 5,081.07 55,367.97 81,000.00 25,632.03 68.4

03-70-5070-00 WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION .00 4,369.47 8,900.00 4,530.53 49.1

03-70-6010-00 UTILITIES 18,907.28 192,979.34 220,000.00 27,020.66 87.7

03-70-6510-00 TELEPHONE 599.15 6,113.29 6,500.00 386.71 94.1

03-70-6511-00 TRAINING .00 200.00 3,300.00 3,100.00 6.1

03-70-6518-00 CLEANING SUPPLIES 58.00 980.18 1,500.00 519.82 65.4

03-70-6522-00 INSURANCE .00 27,855.02 29,300.00 1,444.98 95.1

03-70-6524-00 GAS AND OIL 1,271.11 9,893.56 9,100.00 (                   793.56) 108.7

03-70-6525-00 GIS MAPPING .00 .00 25,000.00 25,000.00 .0

03-70-6526-00 CHEMICALS 8,637.29 125,623.19 120,000.00 (                5,623.19) 104.7

03-70-6527-00 SUPPLIES-SAFETY EQPT. 334.99 1,056.78 3,500.00 2,443.22 30.2

03-70-6528-00 OPERATING SUPPLIES 257.71 3,430.73 10,000.00 6,569.27 34.3

03-70-6544-02 TOOLS .00 283.66 3,500.00 3,216.34 8.1

03-70-6544-03 VEHICLE 17,689.00 17,689.00 19,000.00 1,311.00 93.1

03-70-6544-04 MANHOLE INSTALLATION .00 22,920.00 50,000.00 27,080.00 45.8

03-70-6544-10 SEWERLINE REPLACEMENT .00 .00 20,000.00 20,000.00 .0

03-70-6544-16 INSTRUMENTATION UPGRADES .00 .00 140,000.00 140,000.00 .0

03-70-6544-20 LOW POINT - IMPROVEMENTS 34,852.50 37,312.50 400,000.00 362,687.50 9.3

03-70-7015-00 REPAIRS & MAINT - MAINS 1,406.00 11,536.54 20,000.00 8,463.46 57.7

03-70-7020-00 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 15,192.00 87,189.02 120,000.00 32,810.98 72.7

03-70-7022-00 VEHICLE REPAIRS .00 1,448.79 3,000.00 1,551.21 48.3

03-70-7023-00 WEED CONTROL/GROUND MAINT. .00 1,928.40 3,000.00 1,071.60 64.3

03-70-7025-00 SEWERLINE CLEANING .00 .00 45,000.00 45,000.00 .0

03-70-7090-00 INSURANCE DEDUCTIBLES .00 1,000.00 7,500.00 6,500.00 13.3

03-70-8012-00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 10,329.36 46,701.04 50,000.00 3,298.96 93.4

TOTAL OPERATIONS - SEWER FUND 135,470.34 886,737.09 1,727,800.00 841,062.91 51.3

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 154,947.64 1,087,385.98 2,023,200.00 935,814.02 53.8

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 31,774.19 915,405.23 (            138,200.00) (         1,053,605.23) 662.4



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING NOVEMBER 30, 2018

CONSERVATION TRUST

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/11/2018     01:25PM       PAGE: 24

05-00-4070-00 COLORADO LOTTERY .00 57,116.57 70,000.00 12,883.43 81.6

05-00-4110-00 PARK FEES 4,500.00 59,000.00 62,500.00 3,500.00 94.4

05-00-4130-00 LARIMER COUNTY USE TAX 10,576.25 97,406.53 90,000.00 (                7,406.53) 108.2

05-00-4330-00 OTHER 11,146.46 12,429.17 5,000.00 (                7,429.17) 248.6

05-00-4610-00 CT-EARNINGS ON INVEST. 4,498.46 20,203.60 9,000.00 (              11,203.60) 224.5

TOTAL SOURCE 00 30,721.17 246,155.87 236,500.00 (                9,655.87) 104.1

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 30,721.17 246,155.87 236,500.00 (                9,655.87) 104.1



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING NOVEMBER 30, 2018

CONSERVATION TRUST

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/11/2018     01:25PM       PAGE: 25

05-70-6533-00 TREE TRIMMING 1,600.00 6,551.19 6,000.00 (                   551.19) 109.2

05-70-6544-01 CAPITAL - TREES .00 .00 7,000.00 7,000.00 .0

05-70-6545-00 EDDIE ARAGON PARK .00 1,466.57 5,000.00 3,533.43 29.3

05-70-6546-00 SUNRISE PARK .00 .00 4,000.00 4,000.00 .0

05-70-6547-00 PARISH PARK .00 29.61 4,000.00 3,970.39 .7

05-70-6548-00 HAYS PARK .00 47.44 6,000.00 5,952.56 .8

05-70-6549-00 PIONEER RIDGE PARK .00 110.00 4,000.00 3,890.00 2.8

05-70-6550-00 ROLLING HILLS RANCH PARK .00 .00 4,000.00 4,000.00 .0

05-70-6551-00 JOHNSTOWN LAKE PARK 1,438.60 7,478.54 8,000.00 521.46 93.5

05-70-6553-00 CLEARVIEW PARK 117.49 150,078.89 165,000.00 14,921.11 91.0

05-70-7020-00 REPAIR & MAINT. .00 332.50 6,000.00 5,667.50 5.5

TOTAL DEPARTMENT 70 3,156.09 166,094.74 219,000.00 52,905.26 75.8

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 3,156.09 166,094.74 219,000.00 52,905.26 75.8

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 27,565.08 80,061.13 17,500.00 (              62,561.13) 457.5



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING NOVEMBER 30, 2018

CONTINGENT FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/11/2018     01:25PM       PAGE: 27

06-00-4110-00 TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND .00 200,000.00 225,000.00 25,000.00 88.9

06-00-4610-00 CF-EARNINGS ON INVESTMENTS 2,592.75 24,523.81 7,200.00 (              17,323.81) 340.6

TOTAL SOURCE 00 2,592.75 224,523.81 232,200.00 7,676.19 96.7

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 2,592.75 224,523.81 232,200.00 7,676.19 96.7



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING NOVEMBER 30, 2018

CONTINGENT FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/11/2018     01:25PM       PAGE: 28

06-70-6544-00 TRANSFER TO BANK FUND .00 7,390.40 1,855,500.00 1,848,109.60 .4

TOTAL DEPARTMENT 70 .00 7,390.40 1,855,500.00 1,848,109.60 .4

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 7,390.40 1,855,500.00 1,848,109.60 .4

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 2,592.75 217,133.41 (         1,623,300.00) (         1,840,433.41) 13.4



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING NOVEMBER 30, 2018

CEMETERY FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/11/2018     01:25PM       PAGE: 30

07-00-4310-00 CEMETERY LOTS AND CARE .00 3,843.00 3,000.00 (                   843.00) 128.1

07-00-4610-00 CP-EARNINGS ON INVESTMENTS 365.53 2,507.67 900.00 (                1,607.67) 278.6

TOTAL SOURCE 00 365.53 6,350.67 3,900.00 (                2,450.67) 162.8

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 365.53 6,350.67 3,900.00 (                2,450.67) 162.8

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 365.53 6,350.67 3,900.00 (                2,450.67) 162.8



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING NOVEMBER 30, 2018

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/11/2018     01:25PM       PAGE: 33

09-00-4110-00 TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND 500,000.00 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 .00 100.0

09-00-4610-00 EARNINGS ON INVESTMENTS 2,558.64 25,841.20 5,000.00 (              20,841.20) 516.8

TOTAL SOURCE 00 502,558.64 1,025,841.20 1,005,000.00 (              20,841.20) 102.1

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 502,558.64 1,025,841.20 1,005,000.00 (              20,841.20) 102.1



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING NOVEMBER 30, 2018

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/11/2018     01:25PM       PAGE: 34

09-70-6544-03 GRADER ROLL OVER .00 18,900.00 18,900.00 .00 100.0

09-70-6544-04 POLICE VEHICLE .00 98,413.08 99,500.00 1,086.92 98.9

09-70-6544-07 PUBLIC WORKS EQUIPMENT 40,495.00 128,180.65 133,000.00 4,819.35 96.4

09-70-6544-10 COMPUTERS .00 999.41 5,200.00 4,200.59 19.2

09-70-6544-12 LOADER .00 19,200.00 19,500.00 300.00 98.5

TOTAL DEPARTMENT 70 40,495.00 265,693.14 276,100.00 10,406.86 96.2

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 40,495.00 265,693.14 276,100.00 10,406.86 96.2

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 462,063.64 760,148.06 728,900.00 (              31,248.06) 104.3



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING NOVEMBER 30, 2018

DRAINAGE FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/11/2018     01:25PM       PAGE: 36

11-00-4110-00 DRAINAGE FEES 36,175.22 472,392.12 416,000.00 (              56,392.12) 113.6

11-00-4610-00 EARNINGS ON INVESTMENTS 6,314.50 49,958.21 22,500.00 (              27,458.21) 222.0

TOTAL SOURCE 00 42,489.72 522,350.33 438,500.00 (              83,850.33) 119.1

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 42,489.72 522,350.33 438,500.00 (              83,850.33) 119.1



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING NOVEMBER 30, 2018

DRAINAGE FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/11/2018     01:25PM       PAGE: 37

ADMINISTRATION

11-25-5010-00 CLERICAL SALARIES 1,475.82 17,612.85 38,900.00 21,287.15 45.3

11-25-5010-03 OVERTIME .00 .00 100.00 100.00 .0

11-25-5011-00 PART TIME OFFICE 342.24 4,020.34 12,600.00 8,579.66 31.9

11-25-5025-00 MANAGER 4,093.86 29,371.39 29,500.00 128.61 99.6

11-25-5050-00 PAYROLL TAXES 307.34 3,521.42 6,300.00 2,778.58 55.9

11-25-5060-00 RETIREMENT FUND 616.28 3,311.08 5,700.00 2,388.92 58.1

11-25-5065-00 HEALTH INSURANCE 775.55 8,482.42 10,200.00 1,717.58 83.2

11-25-5070-00 WORKMAN'S COMPENSATION .00 641.22 700.00 58.78 91.6

11-25-6010-00 UTILITIES 95.47 943.37 1,600.00 656.63 59.0

11-25-6505-00 OFFICE SUPPLIES 57.99 439.82 800.00 360.18 55.0

11-25-6506-00 UTILITY BILL MAILING 657.76 6,967.86 7,900.00 932.14 88.2

11-25-6507-00 ON LINE BILL PRESENTMENT .00 .00 2,300.00 2,300.00 .0

11-25-6510-00 TELEPHONE .00 .00 800.00 800.00 .0

11-25-6522-00 INSURANCE AND BONDS .00 2,600.00 2,800.00 200.00 92.9

11-25-6544-04 COMPUTER SOFTWARE .00 .00 3,500.00 3,500.00 .0

11-25-7020-00 MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS .00 382.11 500.00 117.89 76.4

11-25-8010-00 AUDIT 575.00 2,075.00 2,500.00 425.00 83.0

11-25-8012-00 COMPUTER PROF. SERVICES 257.25 3,949.75 3,700.00 (                   249.75) 106.8

11-25-8014-00 LEGAL .00 1,445.75 2,200.00 754.25 65.7

11-25-8017-00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 9,254.56 85,764.38 134,100.00 48,335.62 64.0

OPERATIONS

11-70-5010-00 SALARIES 2,839.56 22,732.83 63,200.00 40,467.17 36.0

11-70-5010-03 OVERTIME .00 .00 600.00 600.00 .0

11-70-5050-00 PAYROLL TAXES 208.18 1,639.80 4,900.00 3,260.20 33.5

11-70-5060-00 RETIREMENT FUND 120.26 962.76 4,200.00 3,237.24 22.9

11-70-5065-00 HEALTH INSURANCE 840.57 9,055.26 24,000.00 14,944.74 37.7

11-70-5070-00 WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION .00 1,923.66 1,900.00 (                     23.66) 101.3

11-70-6510-00 TELEPHONE 17.27 602.67 900.00 297.33 67.0

11-70-6511-00 TRAINING .00 .00 600.00 600.00 .0

11-70-6522-00 INSURANCE .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .00 100.0

11-70-6524-00 GAS & OIL 50.67 2,263.81 2,000.00 (                   263.81) 113.2

11-70-6526-00 OPERATING SUPPLIES .00 364.66 1,000.00 635.34 36.5

11-70-6544-06 INFRASTRUCTURE REPAIR .00 .00 20,000.00 20,000.00 .0

11-70-7020-00 REPAIR & MAINTENANCE .00 4,066.55 1,000.00 (                3,066.55) 406.7

11-70-7022-00 VEHICLE REPAIRS .00 .00 800.00 800.00 .0

11-70-7024-00 INLET REPLACEMENT .00 .00 20,000.00 20,000.00 .0

11-70-7026-00 CURB/GUTTER REPLACEMENT .00 17,017.50 70,000.00 52,982.50 24.3

TOTAL OPERATIONS 4,076.51 65,629.50 220,100.00 154,470.50 29.8

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 13,331.07 151,393.88 354,200.00 202,806.12 42.7

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 29,158.65 370,956.45 84,300.00 (            286,656.45) 440.0



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING NOVEMBER 30, 2018

LIBRARY

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/11/2018     01:26PM       PAGE: 39

14-00-5010-00 LIBRARY- SALARIES 26,377.16 284,364.74 398,000.00 113,635.26 71.5

14-00-5050-00 LIBRARY-PAYROLL TAXES 1,995.42 21,584.73 48,000.00 26,415.27 45.0

14-00-5065-00 HEALTH INS. 500.00 5,154.90 10,000.00 4,845.10 51.6

14-00-5070-00 WORKMENS COMPENSATION .00 641.22 4,000.00 3,358.78 16.0

14-00-6522-00 INSURANCE AND BONDS .00 3,800.00 .00 (                3,800.00) .0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT 00 28,872.58 315,545.59 460,000.00 144,454.41 68.6

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 28,872.58 315,545.59 460,000.00 144,454.41 68.6

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES (              28,872.58) (            315,545.59) (            460,000.00) (            144,454.41) (  68.6)



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING NOVEMBER 30, 2018

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/11/2018     01:26PM       PAGE: 41

15-00-4060-00 USE TAX 308,691.19 2,847,532.90 1,000,000.00 (         1,847,532.90) 284.8

15-00-4610-00 EARNINGS ON INVESTMENTS 36,797.73 216,196.35 65,000.00 (            151,196.35) 332.6

TOTAL SOURCE 00 345,488.92 3,063,729.25 1,065,000.00 (         1,998,729.25) 287.7

SOURCE 01

15-01-4530-00 DEVELOPER REIMBURSEMENT .00 34,040.19 60,000.00 25,959.81 56.7

TOTAL SOURCE 01 .00 34,040.19 60,000.00 25,959.81 56.7

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 345,488.92 3,097,769.44 1,125,000.00 (         1,972,769.44) 275.4



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING NOVEMBER 30, 2018

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/11/2018     01:26PM       PAGE: 42

15-70-7020-00 STREET REPAIR & MAINT. 10,610.39 304,096.41 350,000.00 45,903.59 86.9

15-70-7022-00 ALLEY IMPROVEMENTS .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

15-70-7035-00 COMMUNITY CENTER IMPROVEMENTS .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

15-70-7045-00 STREETLIGHTS .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

15-70-7047-00 SIGNS .00 2,056.00 5,000.00 2,944.00 41.1

15-70-7055-00 ENGINEERING/ARCHITECTURAL 267,562.59 632,497.45 1,200,000.00 567,502.55 52.7

15-70-7062-00 COMMUNITY RECREATION CENTER .00 996,497.82 6,000,000.00 5,003,502.18 16.6

15-70-7065-00 SIDEWALK/CURB REPL. .00 16,377.50 15,000.00 (                1,377.50) 109.2

15-70-7085-00 SHOP IMPROVEMENTS .00 .00 5,500.00 5,500.00 .0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT 70 278,172.98 1,951,525.18 7,587,500.00 5,635,974.82 25.7

15-80-7060-00 REBATE 11,105.33 22,592.83 180,000.00 157,407.17 12.6

15-80-7090-00 I-25 GRANT CONTRIBUTION .00 250,000.00 250,000.00 .00 100.0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT 80 11,105.33 272,592.83 430,000.00 157,407.17 63.4

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 289,278.31 2,224,118.01 8,017,500.00 5,793,381.99 27.7

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 56,210.61 873,651.43 (         6,892,500.00) (         7,766,151.43) 12.7



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING NOVEMBER 30, 2018

JOHNSON'S CORNER IMP. FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/11/2018     01:26PM       PAGE: 44

16-00-4070-00 FROM SALES TAX 9,978.18 112,666.26 112,500.00 (                   166.26) 100.2

16-00-4610-00 EARNINGS ON INVESTMENTS .00 24.47 100.00 75.53 24.5

TOTAL SOURCE 00 9,978.18 112,690.73 112,600.00 (                     90.73) 100.1

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 9,978.18 112,690.73 112,600.00 (                     90.73) 100.1



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING NOVEMBER 30, 2018

JOHNSON'S CORNER IMP. FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/11/2018     01:26PM       PAGE: 45

16-70-7010-00 CONSTRUCTION .00 87,500.00 114,900.00 27,400.00 76.2

TOTAL DEPARTMENT 70 .00 87,500.00 114,900.00 27,400.00 76.2

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 87,500.00 114,900.00 27,400.00 76.2

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 9,978.18 25,190.73 (                2,300.00) (              27,490.73) 1095.3



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING NOVEMBER 30, 2018

IMPACT FEES

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/11/2018     01:26PM       PAGE: 47

17-00-4610-00 EARNINGS ON INVESTMENTS 29,872.31 179,455.40 50,000.00 (            129,455.40) 358.9

TOTAL SOURCE 00 29,872.31 179,455.40 50,000.00 (            129,455.40) 358.9

SOURCE 01

17-01-4110-01 TRANSPORATION FAC. DEV. FEE 226,259.71 1,255,336.36 405,000.00 (            850,336.36) 310.0

17-01-4110-02 POLICE FACILTIES DEV. FEE 31,588.29 261,974.04 132,000.00 (            129,974.04) 198.5

17-01-4110-03 PUBLIC FACILITIES DEV. FEE 99,612.74 635,078.48 28,000.00 (            607,078.48) 2268.1

17-01-4110-04 PARKS & OPEN SPACE DEV. FEE 10,557.00 372,636.00 150,000.00 (            222,636.00) 248.4

17-01-4110-05 LIBRARY FACILITIES FEE 8,244.00 267,886.00 100,000.00 (            167,886.00) 267.9

17-01-4110-06 TRAFFIC SIGNAL 278.86 7,804.38 5,000.00 (                2,804.38) 156.1

TOTAL SOURCE 01 376,540.60 2,800,715.26 820,000.00 (         1,980,715.26) 341.6

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 406,412.91 2,980,170.66 870,000.00 (         2,110,170.66) 342.6



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING NOVEMBER 30, 2018

IMPACT FEES

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/11/2018     01:26PM       PAGE: 48

17-70-6544-01 POLICE VEHICLE .00 92,410.83 93,000.00 589.17 99.4

17-70-6544-15 POLICE EQUIPMENT 2,979.62 10,979.62 33,200.00 22,220.38 33.1

17-70-6544-19 ANNUAL LEASE/UTILITIES 1,797.13 19,650.60 26,500.00 6,849.40 74.2

17-70-6544-20 PEDESTRIAN CROSSING SIGNALS .00 28,995.00 75,000.00 46,005.00 38.7

17-70-8017-00 PARKS & OPEN - PROFESSIONAL .00 .00 15,000.00 15,000.00 .0

17-70-8018-00 TRANSPORTATION EXPENDITURES .00 1,000.00 30,000.00 29,000.00 3.3

17-70-8018-02 HWY 34/LARIMER PKWY SIGNAL 6,355.50 37,295.51 .00 (              37,295.51) .0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT 70 11,132.25 190,331.56 272,700.00 82,368.44 69.8

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 11,132.25 190,331.56 272,700.00 82,368.44 69.8

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 395,280.66 2,789,839.10 597,300.00 (         2,192,539.10) 467.1



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING NOVEMBER 30, 2018

STREET MAINTENANCE FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/11/2018     01:26PM       PAGE: 52

20-00-4110-00 STREET MAINTENANCE FEES 28,604.25 306,116.83 305,000.00 (                1,116.83) 100.4

20-00-4610-00 EARNINGS ON INVESTMENTS .00 467.80 500.00 32.20 93.6

TOTAL SOURCE 00 28,604.25 306,584.63 305,500.00 (                1,084.63) 100.4

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 28,604.25 306,584.63 305,500.00 (                1,084.63) 100.4



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 11 MONTHS ENDING NOVEMBER 30, 2018

STREET MAINTENANCE FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 92 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  12/11/2018     01:26PM       PAGE: 53

20-70-7020-00 STREET MAINTENANCE .00 271,494.11 300,000.00 28,505.89 90.5

TOTAL DEPARTMENT 70 .00 271,494.11 300,000.00 28,505.89 90.5

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 271,494.11 300,000.00 28,505.89 90.5

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 28,604.25 35,090.52 5,500.00 (              29,590.52) 638.0







































TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN 

MEMORANDUM 
INFORMATION ONLY 

 

The Community That Cares 

 
 
TO:   Honorable Mayor and Town Council Members 
 
FROM:  Matt LeCerf, Interim Town Manager 
 
DATE:  November 5, 2018 (Initially Distributed) 
  December 3, 2018 
 
CC:   Town Staff 

Local Media 
 
SUBJECT:  Purchasing Policy 
 
 
Enclosed for your review is a proposed final redlined copy of the new purchasing policy. The 
redline version presented is a reflection of changes made based on feedback received by the 
Council and standardization of formatting and language. As previously mentioned, this policy 
revision will enable the Town Staff to be more effective in streamlining purchases and more 
importantly projects. Staff will also be cognizant of the need to communicate contracts that are 
approved, as appropriate, to Council. The changes that are proposed would still not permit for 
unappropriated funds to be spent over $25,000 and if less than this amount, it may require 
Council approval if funds are not available in the budget to absorb the expenditure. This 
document still allows the Council to hold the Manager accountable for maintaining a balanced 
budget while delivering meaningful outcomes for the organization.  
 
As part of this consent item, Resolution 2018-23 is included recognizing adoption of this policy. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PURCHASING POLICY 
(Redline copy) 



Town of Johnstown 
Purchasing & Surplus Property Policyies 

  
The purpose of this Purchasing & Surplus Property Policypolicy (“Policy”) is to establish purchasing 
guidelines.  This Policy ese policies areis applicable to all purchasing for the Town of Johnstown (“Town”) 
and isare established to ensure that needed goods and services are obtained in a timely manner, at the lowest 
prices possible, consistent with acceptable quality standards.  

 
Consistent with these objectives, a part of the Town’s procurement activity is decentralized.  In recognition 
of the cost of staff time and to reduce the cost of making small purchases, purchasing cards may beare 
issued to selected personnel as approved by the Finance Director and/or the Town Manager.  The purchasing 
card will be defined later in this manual. 
 
Procedures which apply to purchases made directly by Town staff as well as the steps followed by the 
Finance Department are described below, along with the public purchasing law and ethical standards that 
shape the Town’s purchasing activities. 
 
From time to time, there may be revisions and/or additions to this policyPolicy, subject to the approval of 
the Johnstown Town Council.  
 
1.  Governing Laws and Policies.  Procurements by the Town of JohnstownTown are governed by this 
Policye policies and by other policies and procedures that may apply, or be adopted by, the Town Council 
orand be required by state law.  Among other procedures, this Policy establishes , and these purchasing 
policies further establish requirements for the Town’s purchasing activities. 
 
2.  Conflict of Interest.  No employee or official of the Town shall participate in a transaction, contract, 
activity, or service of the Town which has a direct or predictable effect on their financial interests or the 
financial interests of an immediate family member. 
 
3.  Personal Purchases.  It is prohibited for an employee or official to make purchases for personal purposes 
or to receive special pricing from a vendor using the Town’s name, account or reputation.   
 
4.  Payment Authorization.  All requests for payment must be approved by a the Ddepartment Hhead or the 
Town Manager.  Employees maycan not authorize payments to themselves.  For purposes of this pPolicy, 
unless otherwise modified by the Town Manager, “department heads” include those employees who report 
directly to the Town Manager and. “Ssupervisory personnel” shall include both the Water and Wastewater 
Supervisor and Streets Supervisor. 
 
5.  Purchase Orders.  A receipt or invoice shall be provided on all purchases. A purchase order is required 
for all purchases over $300.00. 
 
6.  Purchasing Thresholds/Authority.  Generally the purchasing thresholds detailed below will be 
applicable. (If there are grant funds involved, the thresholds may differ.  Please refer to any grant 
requirements and proceed using the most restrictive standards.): 

a. Under $2,500.  Small items in this category, used on a day to day basis, may be purchased with 
the approval of supervisory personnel without competitive bidding on each item.  However, even 
on these items, periodic telephone inquiries should be made to be certain the purchases are secured 
from a local source at the lowest possible price for the quality needed.  Items that are used on a day 



to day basis consist of office supplies and other items that routinely purchased.  Department heads 
may authorize employees to purchase budgeted items. 

b. $2,500 - $49,999.99.  Purchases or contracts for services for the sum of $10,0002,500 to $49,999.99 
shall be secured on a competitive bid basis.  The bidis must be accomplished by securing at least 
three informal bids, submitting requests for proposals or utilizing the through the formal bid process 
through utilizing advertisement and related requirementspecifications; whichever process is most 
advantageous to the Town. 

c. $50,000 and higher.  Any item for services, projects, or equipment in this category shall be 
purchased through the formal bid process.  Formal bids shall be secured by advertisement.  
Additionally, a random sample of vendors who qualify, or who have indicated an interest in 
bidding, shall be forwarded a copy of the specifications, when possible to ensure the best 
competitive bids for the Town. 

i. Appropriated Items up to $100,000 – Construction contracts and purchases can be 
approved by the Town Manager. 

ii. Appropriated Items up to $10,000 - Construction contracts can be approved by department 
head and notification of the Town Manager. 

iii. Non-Appropriated Items exceeding $25,000 – Must go before the Town Council and be 
approved and appropriated by resolution. 

 
7.  Local Purchasing Preference. 

a.  If a local bidder is within five (5%) percent of the lowest bid from an out of town bidder on a 
construction or other formally bid project from $0.00 - $4,999.99, two (2%) percent on such 
project(s) from $5,000.00 up to $999,999.99, and within one percent on such project(s) from 
$1,000,000.00 up to $5,000,000.00, then the Town will provide the local bidder with a 
preference, will be awarded the bid unless otherwise provided in this section. 

b.  The local purchasing preference policy shall not apply in the following instances: 
ai. When purchases and/or contracts are funded in whole or in part by federal funds; 

        iib. When purchases are more than $5,000,000.00; 
iiic. When purchases are not required to be formally bid, such as sole source procurements, 

emergency procurements, or purchases authorized in a formally-adopted emergency 
management policy and any other such procurements as defined in the Town 
procurement policy or the Town emergency management policy; 

      div. When professional services are procured through the issuance of requests for 
qualifications and/or requests for proposals, including design-build contracts; or,  

      ve. When such preference is in conflict with any applicable state or federal laws, 
rules or regulations. 

c.  The local purchasing preference policy shall not apply to private construction projects financed 
with public assistance, including, but not limited to, tax increment financing, redevelopment 
projects and enterprise zone redevelopment. 

d. “Local” is defined as a business operating within the corporate limits of the Town of 
JohnstownTown, with the majority of its primary business operations, including, but not 
necessarily limited to, production, operation, purchasing, billing, marketing, management, 
administration and ownership, occurring within the town limits.  “Local” shall not include the 
following: 

      ai.  Those businesses with only a local Johnstown post office box;     
     iib.  Those businesses with a sales presence in the Town, but no physical business 

location within the Town limits; and 
      iiic.  Home based businesses that merely take orders for products shipped from out-of 

town to their customers.  Exceptions will be considered on a case-by-case basis when a 
written request is submitted to the Town Manager.  



ed. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the local bidder must otherwise meet all qualifications and 
procurement policy requirements of the Town, including, but not limited to, the “best bid” 
requirements, the ability to be bonded based on the project, and verification of performance for 
other similar projects, in order to be awarded a bid and contract under this section. 

 
8.  Bid Guidelines.   

a. Correspondence with Vendors.  All correspondence with vendors should be communicated 
through the department head responsible for overseeing the specific bid unless the bid 
specifications make it advisable to delegate authority to others. 

b. Formal Bid Notice.  All formal bid purchases or formal contracts for services shall be 
advertised as follows: 

i All notices and solicitations of bids shall state the time and place of the bid 
opening.  If required, the request for bids will be published in the newspaper and 
posted on the Town’s website at least 10 days prior to the bid deadline.  The request 
shall include an adequate description of the scope of work to be completed, any 
specifics which may be required of the vendor, including, but not limited to, the 
amount of any bid bond, all contractual terms, and conditions application to the 
public project. 

ii. Notices and solicitations of bids shall include information that these are sealed bids 
and that they should be so identified on the envelope. 

iii. Notices and solicitations of bids shall plainly state to whom the sealed bid(s) 
should be addressed, and should be filed with the Town Clerk. 

 
iv. When advertising for proposals with federal funding, guidance will be followed as 

per CFR200.319 thru CFR200.322 and all other applicable law, and as amended 
from time to time, to ensure proper competition of project awards.  This also entails 
taking necessary affirmative action steps to assure that minority businesses, 
women’s business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms are used when possible. 

d. Public Opening.  All bids shall be opened publicly at the time and place designated in the 
invitation for bids.  The amount of each bid and such other relevant information as may be 
specified by rules, together with the name of each bidder shall be entered on a record and 
open to public inspection.  After the time of the award, all bids and requests for proposal 
documents shall be open to public inspection. 

e. Performance Bonds.  Performance bonds, in cash or otherwise, or other acceptable 
financial assurance such as a letter of credit shall be requested if in the best interest of the 
Town or if otherwise required by law in such an amount as may be deemed sufficient to 
secure the execution of the contract or to furnish supplies.  

f. Technology and Advertising.  The Town maywill use electronic means (i.e. internet, email, 
etc.) to inform potential vendors and may use technology to improve transparency and 
purchasing efficiencies for the Town.  All available means for advertising the invitation to 
bid shall be used to the extent possible, to encourage full and open competition.  When 
advertising for proposals with federal funding, guidance will be followed in CFR200.319 
to ensure proper competition of project awards is encouraged.  This also entails, for 
example, taking necessary affirmative steps to assure that the minority businesses, 
women’s business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms are used when possible.  

g. Competitive Buying.  Town policy requires quotes or bids to be obtained from as many 
providers as reasonably possible to ensure a competitive marketing atmosphere and 
advantageous pricing.  Bids will be solicited when required by policy and also when it is 
found to be advantageous to do so.  Any qualified provider may respond to a Town request 
for quote or bid. 



h.  Awards.  The Town of JohnstownTown reserves the right to reject any and all bids and 
waive any informality.  The Town of JohnstownTown also reserves the right to select the 
lowest and/or best bidder as determined by the Town in its sole discretion.  Bidders may 
be disqualified for past failure to follow proper change order processes, for or failure to 
complete projects in a timely, for not performing in  and/or a professional and good work 
like manner, or for any other reason deemed appropriate by the Town.   

 
9.  Exclusive Service.  Sole source purchases may be made if it has been determined that there is only one 
good or service that can reasonably meet the need and there is only one vendor who can provide the good 
or service.  Written justification for the sole source purchase must be retained with support for the purchase. 
 
10.  Emergency Purchases.  In the event of natural disasters, accidents, or other emergencies or other matters 
impacting the immediate where health, safety or welfare of the community is at risk, the Town shall comply 
with this Policy the procurement requirements to the extent practicable, but this may be waived by the Town 
Manager may waive the formalities set forth herein.  The Town Manager will notify the Town Council of 
any emergency immediately identifying the nature of the emergency and any purchase which may be 
required.  Forms required herein for the purpose of authorizing and acquiring goods or services necessary 
for the immediate preservation of life, health, safety, welfare or property during a local disaster or 
emergency conditions shall not require compliance with the bidding requirements set forth in this Policy 
and may be awarded on a sole-source basis.  Documentation of procurement decisions in an emergency 
period is required to be retained, to support the urgency of the purchase and as justification for deviation of 
any Town policy.  Once the Town is no longer operating in an emergency period, adherence to this Policy 
e approved procurement requirements is required.  Careful consideration shall be given to procurement 
decisions made in an emergency period and when grant funds may be received.  Federal procurement 
guidance currently available (at CFR200.319) indicates that purchases above the dollar threshold of a micro 
purchase, currently $3,000, must also have three written quotes to support the cost reasonableness of the 
purchase.  If, at any time, a purchase may have a grant implication, purchaser should follow guidance from 
the grantor. 
 
11.  Exemptions From Public Bidding.  The Town recognizes the need to use outside sources for providing 
pProfessional Sservices, constructing cCapital Pprojects (vendors and contractors) and obtaining for 
providing services for day to day operations and maintenance.  The Town requires staff to solicit bids for 
any purchase of goods over $50,000, per engagement or annually.  This requirement may be waived by the 
Town Manager for ongoing service contracts where the past experience related directly to the Town is a 
compelling reason to continue a service contract from year to year.  Selection of vendors, contractors or 
consultants may be based on past experience with the Town, knowledge of the Town and region, philosophy 
of the nature of the job, availability of time, quality of product, quality of service and material, maintenance, 
warranties, price and other such criteria as deemed appropriate for a particular public project.  The Town 
recognizes the following exemptions tofor the bid guidelines set forth hereinPublic Bid Process: 

a. Professional Services.  This purchasing pPolicy shall not apply to professional services and 
the requirements shall not be mandatory in the employment of professional services.  
Professional services include, but are not limited to the following:  Attorneys, Bond 
Counsel, Certified Public Accountants/Auditors, Consultants, Engineers, Financial 
Advisors, Physicians and Real Estate Brokers. The Council may award these services as 
desired and at their discretion. The staff shall use the following criteria when applicable 
and necessary, based on a specific project that includes: 

i. Past experience in performing the services requested;. 
ii. Responsiveness to the needs of the Town, with respect to time to complete the 

project, the approach to the project, and anticipated design concepts offered;. 
iii. Responsibility and experience in dealing with municipal governments and 

projects of similar size, scope, and nature; . 



iv. The professional's engagement team, including the experience and resumes of 
key personnel assigned; and. 

v. Results of reference checks and past performance for other clients 
b. Design Build Services.  This Ppolicy shall not apply to design-build specialty services so 

long as the project does not exceed $100,000. If less than $100,000, the following 
evaluation criteria shall apply: 

i. A guaranteed maximum price must be agreed upon and any savings shall revert 
back to the Town if the final project cost is less than the guaranteed maximum 
price. 

ii. The Town shall have the option at any time to validate proposed costs and fees 
of the professional who must disclose all information used to arrive at the 
proposed costs and fees. 

c. Use of State Bids or Existing Contracts.  This purchasing pPolicy shall not apply if the 
purchasing department is able to piggy-back on a State Bid Award, GSA bid award, or 
other bid award by a local government entity where a public bid process has taken place 
on the conditions that . Aappropriate verification of the bid ismust be provided, the cost 
does not exceed $100,000, and funds areis available in the budget. 

d. Waiver of Bidding Process.  Notwithstanding the provisions of this pPolicy, the Town may 
forego the bidding process altogether in certain specific instances that would be in the best 
interests of the Town provided that there is sufficient information and documentation to 
demonstrate that a waiver of the procedure would benefit the Town.  Any deviations from 
the bidding process must have Town Manager approval, who shall then generate a report 
to the Town Council for the next Town Council meeting explaining the reasons for the 
waiver.  It is intended that this process should be used infrequently and only when there is 
supporting information to demonstrate that the waiver would be in the best interests of the 
Town and not in any fashion compromise the integrity of the overall bidding policy of the 
Town. 

  
12.  Contract Authority.  The Town Manager or department head shall have the power and duty to approve 
and execute, by signature, all contracts or agreements of, or on behalf of, the Town or its enterprises, subject 
to the following limitations. 

a. Amount to Exceed $100,000.  Contracts or agreements that exceed $100,000 must be 
approved by the Council unless part of an annual contract and appropriated in the budget. 

b. Conveyances.  No contract or agreement shall involve conveyances of interest in land, 
bonds, indentures, evidence of indebtedness, or proclamations, unless the authority to 
approve and execute such documents shall be granted by the Council. 

c. Charter and Municipal Code.  Contracts or agreements that are required by the Town’s 
Home Rule Charter or the Johnstown Municipal Code to be approved and executed by the 
Town Council. 

c.d. Intergovernmental Agreements.  Such contract or agreement does not constitute an 
“intergovernmental agreement” under Colorado law. 

d.e. Delegation.  The Town Manager may delegate the signatory authority for the approval and 
execution of contracts and agreements to department heads when the contractual matters 
fall within their area of responsibility. 

e.f. Appropriation.  No contract shall be approved or executed unless funds for the payment of 
obligations under the contract or agreement are in the budget and have been approved by 
the Town Council.  This section shall not prohibit the approval and execution of multi-year 
contracts or agreement where such agreements are legally permissible. 

f.g. Legal Review.  Unless of a routine nature as determined by the Town Manager or the 
Town’s standard form of contractor/professional services agreement cannot be used, all 
contracts or agreements are subject to legal review. 



 
13.  Town Issued Purchasing Cards.  This policyPolicy applies to all items procured by the use of a Town-
issued Purchasing Card. 

a. Issuance.  Town purchasing cards may only be issued to department heads or other 
personnel as authorized by the Town Manager and Finance Director. 

b. Legitimate Business Expenses.  A purchasing card shall be used for purchases on behalf, 
or costs associated with, approved travel and proper Town business expenses.  No 
cardholder may procure goods or services for personal purposes.  Personal use of a 
purchasing card consists of an item that is not a legitimate business expense and must be 
reimbursed to the Town.  Misuse of the card could subject an employee to discipline 
pursuant to the personnel policies of the Town.  Department hHeads may make available 
purchasing cards for purchases where time is of the essence to save the Town money; where 
credit card is the only or easiest form of payment accepted for a product or service; or when 
required for travel purposes.  It is the responsibility of the Department Hhead to notify the 
Finance Department if an employee is no longer authorized to use the Town’s purchasing 
card. 

c. Purchasing Procedures.  Purchases made with the purchasing card should follow all 
guidelines as stated in this Financial Policy document. 

d. Travel Related Expenses.  If a spouse or family member is accompanying the employee on 
a business trip, only employee’s travel expenses may be charged to the card.  Airline tickets 
or other travel expenses related to the family member must be paid by the individual at the 
time of purchase.  It is not acceptable to reimburse the Town for those expenses.  Personal 
expenses may not be charged to the hotel room and must be paid for separately.  Hotel, car 
rental, parking, taxi, etc. receipts must be submitted to the Finance Department within a 
week of return from the business trip.  Travel expenses for the employee will be reimbursed 
up to the maximum allowed for that location by U.S. General Service Administration 
(www.gsa.gov).  Mileage will be reimbursed at the published Internal Revenue Service 
(IRS) standard mileage rate.  Mileage will only be reimbursed if no Town vehicle is 
available for use. 

e. Monthly Statements.  It will be the responsibility of the card holder to reconcile the monthly 
credit card statements and receipts.  Original receipts must be submitted to the Finance 
Directorepartment within one week of purchase.  Failure to do so will result in loss of 
purchasing card privileges.   
 

14. Surplus Property Disposal.  As items are purchased with public funds, the Town Manager must declare 
items to be surplus prior to disposal and said disposal must follow the provisions herein. 

a. De Minimis Valued Items.  Non-capital material and supply items that are normally used 
up during the normal course of business and have individual value less than $250 are 
exempted from the formal surplus disposal process.  These items can be thrown away, 
destroyed, donated or sold with approval from the Town Manager or Finance Director. 

b. Unusable Equipment.  The disposal of capital equipment with a salvage value less than 
$2,500 is exempted from the formal surplus disposal process.  These items can be sold 
for salvage value without a declaration of surplus property, upon approval from the Town 
Manager or Finance Director. 

c. Auction or Sale of Property (Formal).  When the current value is deemed to exceed 
$2,500, it can be offered at public auction or written bid.  The bid must be advertised at 
least 10 days prior to sale.  If no bids are received or if a determination is made that the 
market value of the property exceeds the offer of the highest bidder, all bids may be 
rejected and the appropriate Ddepartment Hhead and Finance Department may negotiate 
a sale. 

 

http://www.gsa.gov/


 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PURCHASING POLICY 
(Final copy) 



Town of Johnstown 
Purchasing & Surplus Property Policy 

  
The purpose of this Purchasing & Surplus Property Policy (“Policy”) is to establish purchasing guidelines.  
This Policy is applicable to all purchasing for the Town of Johnstown (“Town”) and is established to ensure 
that needed goods and services are obtained in a timely manner, at the lowest prices possible, consistent 
with acceptable quality standards.  

 
Consistent with these objectives, a part of the Town’s procurement activity is decentralized.  In recognition 
of the cost of staff time and to reduce the cost of making small purchases, purchasing cards may be issued 
to selected personnel as approved by the Finance Director or the Town Manager.  The purchasing card will 
be defined later in this manual. 
 
Procedures which apply to purchases made directly by Town staff as well as the steps followed by the 
Finance Department are described below, along with the public purchasing law and ethical standards that 
shape the Town’s purchasing activities. 
 
From time to time, there may be revisions and/or additions to this Policy, subject to the approval of the 
Johnstown Town Council.  
 
1.  Governing Laws and Policies.  Procurements by the Town are governed by this Policy and by other 
policies and procedures that may apply, or be adopted by, the Town Council or be required by state law.  
Among other procedures, this Policy establishes requirements for the Town’s purchasing activities. 
 
2.  Conflict of Interest.  No employee or official of the Town shall participate in a transaction, contract, 
activity, or service of the Town which has a direct or predictable effect on their financial interests or the 
financial interests of an immediate family member. 
 
3.  Personal Purchases.  It is prohibited for an employee or official to make purchases for personal purposes 
or to receive special pricing from a vendor using the Town’s name, account or reputation.   
 
4.  Payment Authorization.  All requests for payment must be approved by a department head or the Town 
Manager.  Employees may not authorize payments to themselves.  For purposes of this Policy, unless 
otherwise modified by the Town Manager, “department heads” include those employees who report directly 
to the Town Manager and “supervisory personnel” include both the Water and Wastewater Supervisor and 
Streets Supervisor. 
 
5.  Purchase Orders.  A receipt or invoice shall be provided on all purchases. A purchase order is required 
for all purchases over $300.00. 
 
6.  Purchasing Thresholds/Authority.  Generally the purchasing thresholds detailed below will be 
applicable. (If there are grant funds involved, the thresholds may differ.  Please refer to any grant 
requirements and proceed using the most restrictive standards.): 

a. Under $2,500.  Small items in this category, used on a day to day basis, may be purchased with 
the approval of supervisory personnel without competitive bidding on each item.  However, even 
on these items, periodic telephone inquiries should be made to be certain the purchases are secured 
from a local source at the lowest possible price for the quality needed.  Items that are used on a day 
to day basis consist of office supplies and other items that routinely purchased.  Department heads 
may authorize employees to purchase budgeted items. 



b. $2,500 - $49,999.99.  Purchases or contracts for services for the sum of $2,500 to $49,999.99 shall 
be secured on a competitive bid basis.  The bid must be accomplished by securing at least three 
informal bids, submitting requests for proposals or utilizing the formal bid process through 
advertisement and related requirement; whichever process is most advantageous to the Town. 

c. $50,000 and higher.  Any item for services, projects, or equipment in this category shall be 
purchased through the formal bid process.  Formal bids shall be secured by advertisement.  
Additionally, a random sample of vendors who qualify, or who have indicated an interest in 
bidding, shall be forwarded a copy of the specifications, when possible to ensure the best 
competitive bids for the Town. 

i. Appropriated Items up to $100,000 – Construction contracts and purchases can be 
approved by the Town Manager. 

ii. Appropriated Items up to $10,000 - Construction contracts can be approved by department 
head and notification of the Town Manager. 

iii. Non-Appropriated Items exceeding $25,000 – Must go before the Town Council and be 
approved and appropriated by resolution. 

 
7.  Local Purchasing Preference. 

a.  If a local bidder is within five (5%) percent of the lowest bid from an out of town bidder on a 
construction or other formally bid project from $0.00 - $4,999.99, two (2%) percent on such 
project(s) from $5,000.00 up to $999,999.99, and within one percent on such project(s) from 
$1,000,000.00 up to $5,000,000.00, then the Town will provide the local bidder with a 
preference, unless otherwise provided in this section. 

b.  The local purchasing preference policy shall not apply in the following instances: 
i. When purchases and/or contracts are funded in whole or in part by federal funds; 

        ii. When purchases are more than $5,000,000.00; 
iii. When purchases are not required to be formally bid, such as sole source procurements, 

emergency procurements, or purchases authorized in a formally-adopted emergency 
management policy; 

iv. When professional services are procured through the issuance of requests for 
qualifications and/or requests for proposals, including design-build contracts; or,  

v. When such preference is in conflict with any applicable state or federal laws, rules or 
regulations. 

c.  The local purchasing preference policy shall not apply to private construction projects financed 
with public assistance, including, but not limited to, tax increment financing, redevelopment 
projects and enterprise zone redevelopment. 

d. “Local” is defined as a business operating within the corporate limits of the Town, with the 
majority of its primary business operations, including, but not necessarily limited to, production, 
operation, purchasing, billing, marketing, management, administration and ownership, occurring 
within the town limits.  “Local” shall not include the following: 

      i.  Those businesses with only a local Johnstown post office box;     
ii.  Those businesses with a sales presence in the Town, but no physical business location 

within the Town limits; and 
iii.  Home based businesses that merely take orders for products shipped from out-of town to 

their customers.  Exceptions will be considered on a case-by-case basis when a written 
request is submitted to the Town Manager.  

e. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the local bidder must otherwise meet all qualifications and 
procurement policy requirements of the Town, including, but not limited to, the “best bid” 
requirements, the ability to be bonded based on the project, and verification of performance for 
other similar projects, in order to be awarded a bid and contract under this section. 

 
8.  Bid Guidelines.   



a. Correspondence with Vendors.  All correspondence with vendors should be communicated 
through the department head responsible for overseeing the specific bid unless the bid 
specifications make it advisable to delegate authority to others. 

b. Formal Bid Notice.  All formal bid purchases or formal contracts for services shall be 
advertised as follows: 

i All notices and solicitations of bids shall state the time and place of the bid 
opening.  If required, the request for bids will be published in the newspaper and 
posted on the Town’s website at least 10 days prior to the bid deadline.  The request 
shall include an adequate description of the scope of work to be completed, any 
specifics which may be required of the vendor, including, but not limited to, the 
amount of any bid bond, all contractual terms, and conditions application to the 
public project. 

ii. Notices and solicitations of bids shall include information that these are sealed bids 
and that they should be so identified on the envelope. 

iii. Notices and solicitations of bids shall plainly state to whom the sealed bid(s) 
should be addressed, and should be filed with the Town Clerk. 

iv. When advertising for proposals with federal funding, guidance will be followed as 
per CFR200.319 thru CFR200.322 and all other applicable law, as amended from 
time to time, to ensure proper competition of project awards.  This also entails 
taking necessary affirmative action steps to assure that minority businesses, 
women’s business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms are used when possible. 

d. Public Opening.  All bids shall be opened publicly at the time and place designated in the 
invitation for bids.  The amount of each bid and such other relevant information as may be 
specified by rules, together with the name of each bidder shall be entered on a record and 
open to public inspection.  After the time of the award, all bids and requests for proposal 
documents shall be open to public inspection. 

e. Performance Bonds.  Performance bonds, in cash or otherwise, or other acceptable 
financial assurance such as a letter of credit shall be requested if in the best interest of the 
Town or if otherwise required by law in such an amount as may be deemed sufficient to 
secure the execution of the contract or to furnish supplies.  

f. Technology and Advertising.  The Town may use electronic means (i.e. internet, email, 
etc.) to inform potential vendors and may use technology to improve transparency and 
purchasing efficiencies for the Town.  All available means for advertising the invitation to 
bid shall be used to the extent possible, to encourage full and open competition.  When 
advertising for proposals with federal funding, guidance will be followed in CFR200.319 
to ensure proper competition of project awards is encouraged.  This also entails, for 
example, taking necessary affirmative steps to assure that the minority businesses, 
women’s business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms are used when possible.  

g. Competitive Buying.  Town policy requires quotes or bids to be obtained from as many 
providers as reasonably possible to ensure a competitive marketing atmosphere and 
advantageous pricing.  Bids will be solicited when required by policy and also when it is 
found to be advantageous to do so.  Any qualified provider may respond to a Town request 
for quote or bid. 

h.  Awards.  The Town reserves the right to reject any and all bids and waive any informality.  
The Town also reserves the right to select the lowest and/or best bidder as determined by 
the Town in its sole discretion.  Bidders may be disqualified for past failure to follow proper 
change order processes, for failure to complete projects in a timely, for not performing in 
a professional and good work like manner, or for any other reason deemed appropriate by 
the Town.   

 



9.  Exclusive Service.  Sole source purchases may be made if it has been determined that there is only one 
good or service that can reasonably meet the need and there is only one vendor who can provide the good 
or service.  Written justification for the sole source purchase must be retained with support for the purchase. 
 
10.  Emergency Purchases.  In the event of natural disasters, accidents, emergencies or other matters 
impacting the immediate health, safety or welfare of the community, the Town shall comply with this Policy 
to the extent practicable, but the Town Manager may waive the formalities set forth herein.  The Town 
Manager will notify the Town Council of any emergency immediately identifying the nature of the 
emergency and any purchase which may be required.  Forms required herein for the purpose of authorizing 
and acquiring goods or services necessary for the immediate preservation of life, health, safety, welfare or 
property during a local disaster or emergency condition shall not require compliance with the bidding 
requirements set forth in this Policy and may be awarded on a sole-source basis.  Documentation of 
procurement decisions in an emergency period is required to be retained, to support the urgency of the 
purchase and as justification for deviation of any Town policy.  Once the Town is no longer operating in 
an emergency period, adherence to this Policy is required.  Careful consideration shall be given to 
procurement decisions made in an emergency period and when grant funds may be received.  Federal 
procurement guidance currently available (at CFR200.319) indicates that purchases above the dollar 
threshold of a micro purchase, currently $3,000, must also have three written quotes to support the cost 
reasonableness of the purchase.  If, at any time, a purchase may have a grant implication, purchaser should 
follow guidance from the grantor. 
 
11.  Exemptions From Public Bidding.  The Town recognizes the need to use outside sources for providing 
professional services, constructing capital projects (vendors and contractors) and obtaining services for day 
to day operations and maintenance.  The Town requires staff to solicit bids for any purchase of goods over 
$50,000, per engagement or annually.  This requirement may be waived by the Town Manager for ongoing 
service contracts where the past experience related directly to the Town is a compelling reason to continue 
a service contract from year to year.  Selection of vendors, contractors or consultants may be based on past 
experience with the Town, knowledge of the Town and region, philosophy of the nature of the job, 
availability of time, quality of product, quality of service and material, maintenance, warranties, price and 
other such criteria as deemed appropriate for a particular public project.  The Town recognizes the following 
exemptions to the bid guidelines set forth herein: 

a. Professional Services.  This Policy shall not apply to professional services and the 
requirements shall not be mandatory in the employment of professional services.  
Professional services include, but are not limited to the following:  Attorneys, Bond 
Counsel, Certified Public Accountants/Auditors, Consultants, Engineers, Financial 
Advisors, Physicians and Real Estate Brokers. The Council may award these services as 
desired and at their discretion. The staff shall use the following criteria when applicable 
and necessary, based on a specific project that includes: 

i. Past experience in performing the services requested; 
ii. Responsiveness to the needs of the Town, with respect to time to complete the 

project, the approach to the project, and anticipated design concepts offered; 
iii. Responsibility and experience in dealing with municipal governments and 

projects of similar size, scope, and nature;  
iv. The professional's engagement team, including the experience and resumes of 

key personnel assigned; and 
v. Results of reference checks and past performance for other clients 

b. Design Build Services.  This Policy shall not apply to design-build specialty services so 
long as the project does not exceed $100,000. If less than $100,000, the following 
evaluation criteria shall apply: 



i. A guaranteed maximum price must be agreed upon and any savings shall revert 
back to the Town if the final project cost is less than the guaranteed maximum 
price. 

ii. The Town shall have the option at any time to validate proposed costs and fees 
of the professional who must disclose all information used to arrive at the 
proposed costs and fees. 

c. Use of State Bids or Existing Contracts.  This Policy shall not apply if the purchasing 
department is able to piggy-back on a State Bid Award, GSA bid award, or other bid award 
by a local government entity where a public bid process has taken place on the conditions 
that appropriate verification of the bid is provided, the cost does not exceed $100,000, and 
funds are available in the budget. 

d. Waiver of Bidding Process.  Notwithstanding the provisions of this Policy, the Town may 
forego the bidding process altogether in certain specific instances that would be in the best 
interests of the Town provided that there is sufficient information and documentation to 
demonstrate that a waiver of the procedure would benefit the Town.  Any deviations from 
the bidding process must have Town Manager approval, who shall then generate a report 
to the Town Council for the next Town Council meeting explaining the reasons for the 
waiver.  It is intended that this process should be used infrequently and only when there is 
supporting information to demonstrate that the waiver would be in the best interests of the 
Town and not in any fashion compromise the integrity of the overall bidding policy of the 
Town. 

  
12.  Contract Authority.  The Town Manager or department head shall have the power and duty to approve 
and execute, by signature, all contracts or agreements of, or on behalf of, the Town or its enterprises, subject 
to the following limitations. 

a. Amount to Exceed $100,000.  Contracts or agreements that exceed $100,000 must be 
approved by the Council unless part of an annual contract and appropriated in the budget. 

b. Conveyances.  No contract or agreement shall involve conveyances of interest in land, 
bonds, indentures, evidence of indebtedness, or proclamations, unless the authority to 
approve and execute such documents shall be granted by the Council. 

c. Charter and Municipal Code.  Contracts or agreements that are required by the Town’s 
Home Rule Charter or the Johnstown Municipal Code to be approved and executed by the 
Town Council. 

d. Intergovernmental Agreements.  Such contract or agreement does not constitute an 
“intergovernmental agreement” under Colorado law. 

e. Delegation.  The Town Manager may delegate the signatory authority for the approval and 
execution of contracts and agreements to department heads when the contractual matters 
fall within their area of responsibility. 

f. Appropriation.  No contract shall be approved or executed unless funds for the payment of 
obligations under the contract or agreement are in the budget and have been approved by 
the Town Council.  This section shall not prohibit the approval and execution of multi-year 
contracts or agreement where such agreements are legally permissible. 

g. Legal Review.  Unless of a routine nature as determined by the Town Manager or the 
Town’s standard form of contractor/professional services agreement cannot be used, all 
contracts or agreements are subject to legal review. 

 
13.  Town Issued Purchasing Cards.  This Policy applies to all items procured by the use of a Town-issued 
Purchasing Card. 

a. Issuance.  Town purchasing cards may only be issued to department heads or other 
personnel as authorized by the Town Manager and Finance Director. 



b. Legitimate Business Expenses.  A purchasing card shall be used for purchases on behalf, 
or costs associated with, approved travel and proper Town business expenses.  No 
cardholder may procure goods or services for personal purposes.  Personal use of a 
purchasing card consists of an item that is not a legitimate business expense and must be 
reimbursed to the Town.  Misuse of the card could subject an employee to discipline 
pursuant to the personnel policies of the Town.  Department heads may make available 
purchasing cards for purchases where time is of the essence to save the Town money; where 
credit card is the only or easiest form of payment accepted for a product or service; or when 
required for travel purposes.  It is the responsibility of the Department head to notify the 
Finance Department if an employee is no longer authorized to use the Town’s purchasing 
card. 

c. Purchasing Procedures.  Purchases made with the purchasing card should follow all 
guidelines as stated in this Financial Policy document. 

d. Travel Related Expenses.  If a spouse or family member is accompanying the employee on 
a business trip, only employee’s travel expenses may be charged to the card.  Airline tickets 
or other travel expenses related to the family member must be paid by the individual at the 
time of purchase.  It is not acceptable to reimburse the Town for those expenses.  Personal 
expenses may not be charged to the hotel room and must be paid for separately.  Hotel, car 
rental, parking, taxi, etc. receipts must be submitted to the Finance Department within a 
week of return from the business trip.  Travel expenses for the employee will be reimbursed 
up to the maximum allowed for that location by U.S. General Service Administration 
(www.gsa.gov).  Mileage will be reimbursed at the published Internal Revenue Service 
(IRS) standard mileage rate.  Mileage will only be reimbursed if no Town vehicle is 
available for use. 

e. Monthly Statements.  It will be the responsibility of the card holder to reconcile the monthly 
credit card statements and receipts.  Original receipts must be submitted to the Finance 
Director within one week of purchase.  Failure to do so will result in loss of purchasing 
card privileges.   
 

14. Surplus Property Disposal.  As items are purchased with public funds, the Town Manager must declare 
items to be surplus prior to disposal and said disposal must follow the provisions herein. 

a. De Minimis Valued Items.  Non-capital material and supply items that are normally used 
up during the normal course of business and have individual value less than $250 are 
exempted from the formal surplus disposal process.  These items can be thrown away, 
destroyed, donated or sold with approval from the Town Manager or Finance Director. 

b. Unusable Equipment.  The disposal of capital equipment with a salvage value less than 
$2,500 is exempted from the formal surplus disposal process.  These items can be sold 
for salvage value without a declaration of surplus property, upon approval from the Town 
Manager or Finance Director. 

c. Auction or Sale of Property (Formal).  When the current value is deemed to exceed 
$2,500, it can be offered at public auction or written bid.  The bid must be advertised at 
least 10 days prior to sale.  If no bids are received or if a determination is made that the 
market value of the property exceeds the offer of the highest bidder, all bids may be 
rejected and the appropriate department head and Finance Department may negotiate a 
sale. 

 

http://www.gsa.gov/


  
 
 

 
 
 
   

 
RESOLUTION 

 
                        No. 2018-23 

 
  

 
 

  
 
 
       



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO 
RESOLUTION NO. 2018-23 

 
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A PURCHASING & SURPLUS POLICY;  

SUPERSEDING RESOLUTION NOS. 98-9, 2002-10, 2003-01 AND 2011-04; 
SUPERSEDING RESOLUTION NO. 2017-10 TO THE EXTENT OF A CONFLICT  

WHEREAS, the Town of Johnstown, Colorado (the “Town”) is a Colorado home rule 
municipality, duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Colorado and the 
Town’s Home Rule Charter; and 

 
WHEREAS, on June 5, 1998, the Town adopted a Purchasing Procedure Manual 

pursuant to Resolution No. 98-9, and thereafter amended the Purchasing Procedure Manual 
pursuant to Resolution Nos. 2002-10, 2003-01 and 2011-04; and  

WHEREAS, on November 20, 2017, the Town delegated authority to the Town Manager 
to execute certain contracts pursuant to Resolution No. 2017-10; and  

WHEREAS, the Interim Town Manager, Matthew LeCerf, recommended that the Town 
adopt new purchasing policies and procedures in the form attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by reference as Exhibit A (“Purchasing & Surplus Policy”); and   

WHEREAS, after review and discussion, the Town Council desires to adopt the 
Purchasing & Surplus Policy; and  

 
WHEREAS, Town Council finds that adoption of the Purchasing & Surplus Policy is in 

the best interest of the Town.   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO, THAT:  
 

Section 1: The Purchasing & Surplus Policy attached as Exhibit A is hereby approved 
and adopted for the Town of Johnstown. 
 

Section 2:  The Purchasing & Surplus Policy supersedes and replaces the previously-
adopted Purchasing Procedure Manual. 

 
Section 3:  Resolution Nos. 98-9, 2002-10, 2003-01 and 2011-04 are hereby superseded 

and replaced by this Resolution. 
 
Section 4:  Resolution No. 2017-10 is hereby superseded and replaced by this 

Resolution, but only to the extent of conflict.  



Section 5: This Resolution shall be effective as of the date of its adoption. 
 
 
PASSED, SIGNED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this ___ day of ________________, 2018. 
 
       TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO 
ATTEST: 
 
By:___________________________________ By:_________________________________ 
 Diana Seele, Town Clerk    Scott James, Mayor 



 
AGENDA ITEM 7 
 
 
 
 

TOWN MANAGER 
 

REPORT 
 
 
 
 



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN 

MEMORANDUM 
 

The Community That Cares 

 

 

TO:   Honorable Mayor and Town Council Members 

 

FROM:  Matt LeCerf, Interim Town Manager 

 

DATE:  December 17, 2018 

 

CC:   Town Staff 

Local Media 

 

SUBJECT:  Departmental Report 

 

 

Upcoming Town Council Work Sessions – If there are topics that the Council would like staff to 

schedule for discussion, please let me know. The following topics are recommended for Council 

discussion (all meetings will be held in the Town Council Chambers unless otherwise indicated): 

 

 12/17/2018 – Regular Town Council Meeting 

o Finance Director Meet & Greet Prior to Regular Meeting 5:45 p.m. 

 12/24/2018 – Work Session (None Scheduled) 

 01/07/2019 – Regular Town Council Meeting 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Police Department 

Training: 

 November 29, 2018 red side received Pressure Point Control Techniques Training from 

8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m.  

o Handcuffing 

o Escort, Joint Locks 

o Pressure Points 

o Defensive Counter Strikes 

o Shoulder Pin 

o Impact Weapons 

o Weapon Retention/Disarming  

 

Community Policing, Outreach & Miscellaneous Items: 

 November 27, 2018, Commander Sanchez attended the Red Rocks Community College 

Advisory Committee Meeting to discuss the following topics: 

o Review of Spring 2018 LEA Advisory meeting  

 Accomplishments/Changes from last year 

 New Curriculum Changes 



 New Equipment  

o Review of the 5-year plan 

o Training and equipment goals for the next 5 years 

o Input from attendees on what they would like to see in the Red Rocks program  

 November 28, 2018 Lt. Oglesby, Det. Slocum and Officer Otero assisted/trained 

employees of Clearview Behavioral Health during an active shooter training exercise. 

 November 29, 2018 Chief McCoy of the Lochbuie Police Department and Commander 

Crone of the Ft. Morgan Police Department conducted our on-site visit for the CACP 

accreditation.  

 November 30, 2018 Officer Kehr read to a group of Ledford Elementary students at 

Barnes & Nobel.  The kids were there doing a fundraiser and Officer Kehr was a guest 

reader.  

 Staffing – The Police Department is currently working towards being fully staffed. We  

currently are down 4 officers, one which is a detective position.  

   

November 2018 Monthly Statistics 

 

Activity 
November 

2017 

November 

2018 

% 

change 

YTD 

totals 

Arrests 

(charges 

filed) 

26 41 +57% 512 

Tickets 

issued 
116 121 +4% 1496 

Incident 

reports 
114 128 +7% 1402 

 

Administration 

 Finance Director – The Town received 13 applications for the Finance Director position.  

Staff has reviewed the applications and selected 5 to interview during the week of 

December 10-12th. 

 Planning & Development Director – The Town still has to interview the Planning and 

Development Director Position. Dates for this have yet to be set, but hopefully are before 

the end of the calendar year. 

 Utility Billing – We have been consistently having about 100 water shut-offs on a 

monthly basis due to nonpayment for more than 60 days. This month, we began taking a 

more proactive approach to try and reduce this number by sending formal disconnection 

notices to those accounts that are delinquent and subject to disconnection around the 

middle of the month. We are hopeful this causes better action by the water customer and 

will in effect save time and money spent by staff to disconnect the services as required. 

We will let you know if this was an effective method to change behaviors. 

 Recreation Center Construction – Construction continues on the Town’s new recreation 

center. Currently construction is still on schedule. The only issue to date thus far has been 

one section where the piers for the foundation installation had softer than expected soils. 



A new design for this specific area has been addressed and approved by the structural 

engineer. 

 Public Works Director Meet & Greet – Thank you to all Council Members and staff who 

attended the meet and greet on the 10th of December. Our candidate has been sent an 

offer of employment and once final acceptance is received we will formally announce the 

individual. 

 

Planning Department 

 Building Permit Software – After review of the permitting software available from 

ProCode for the Town, we anticipate moving from the excel spreadsheets in the middle 

of January 2019. This will help us to be more efficient in all aspects of the building 

permit process. The software also has a component we will begin exploring for 

development and planning review elements as well in early January. 

 

Public Works Department 

Streets 

 Street Maintenance – Crews have crack sealed the roads of Green Wing and Goldeneye 

in the Pioneer Ridge Neighborhood. We continue to crack seal this neighborhood as 

weather permits and when completed we will move to another neighborhood to continue 

the maintenance. 

 Road Grading – Town street crew graded 8 miles of gravel roads in town. Ditches on 

CR46 have been cleaned out of gravel to maintain proper drainage which will help to 

prevent more rapid deterioration of the gravel roadways. 

 Addition to the team – Streets department added a new fulltime employee (Bob Bellows) 

to the team. Bob joins our team and brings 17 years of experience with CDOT with him. 

 

Water & Wastewater Treatment Plant 

 NOCO Engineering Company – NOCO is working on design for replacement piping in 

the filter building basement at the Water Treatment Plant and DAF saturator system that 

is to be installed in early 2019. This is one of the many components that will help us get 

to 7.5 Million Gallons per Day (MGD) on our Water Treatment Plant. The ultimate 

capacity of the WTP is 10 MGD, but additional components will need to be installed to 

reach this limit in the future.   

 Maintenance Items – Staff is working on yearly maintenance for the DAF at the WTP 

including: draining and cleaning basins and inspecting all mechanical equipment for the 

system. New conduit has been placed in the same trench used for the gates currently 

being installed. We proactively added this to be used for future project needs at the 

cemetery. 

 New Fan Press for Low Point – The Nalco Rep came out and ran a jar test to see if we 

can optimize the polymer for better results when using our fan press which is set to be 

delivered on December 21st.  

 Dale’s Environmental Services (DES) – DES completed the sewer cleaning and lift 

station cleaning project for the 2018 contract.  While in the area, they also cleaned the 

sand and gravel interceptor at the Town Shop. 

 



 
AGENDA ITEM 10A 
 
 
 
 

RESUBDIVISION OF OUTLOT D 
 

(Corbett Glen Filing No. 4) 
 

(Public Hearing) 
 
 





TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATION 
 
AGENDA DATE:  December 17, 2018 
 
ITEM NUMBER:  
 
SUBJECT:  *Public Hearing- Resubdivision of Outlot D and Lot 4, Block 5, Corbett Glen Filing No. 4 - Final Plat 
  
ACTION PROPOSED: Consider Approval of Final Plat 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Mr. John Franklin, Town Planner  
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: The applicant, Twin Silos, LLC, has submitted a request for approval of a final re-
subdivision plat for a parcel of land located north of Ballentine Blvd. and south of Dunbar Way.  
 
The resubdivision plat consists of a lot line adjustment for Lot 4, Block 5 and creation of 6 single family lots ranging in size 
from 7,957sf to 12,881sf. Outlot D was approved as open space due to an existing oil and gas well and Town-required buffer 
area. In November, 2017 the well was formally abandoned and capped in accordance with Colorado Oil and Gas 
Conservation Commission (COGCC) rules. A copy of documentation provided by Extraction Oil and Gas is attached. The 
additional lots will not, according to the Town Engineer, significantly impact sanitary sewer capacity. The property is 
included in the existing water and sewer service agreement.  Public improvements, including water sewer 
curb/gutter/sidewalk and streets are substantially complete to serve the lots. 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission held a public hearing on November 14, 2018 and voted to recommend approval of 
the final plat subject to conditions: 
1. That the abandoned flowlines in Outlot D be removed prior to building permits. 
2. The abandoned well site be marked to avoid damage.  
3. That if the Town determines that if Outlot D had not been proposed for irrigation, the owner will need additional water 
rights to serve the lots prior to development.. 
 
Follow up: 
The applicant has worked with Front Range Fire Rescue and the oil and gas Operator to resolve the flow lines concerns.  
There appears to be adequate surplus water rights credits for the proposed lots. 
______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
LEGAL ADVICE: N/A 
 

FINANCIAL ADVICE: N/A 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: The Planning and Zoning Commission has recommended approval subject to conditions.  
 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
For Approval:  I move to approve the Resubdivision of Outlot D and Lot 4, Block 5, Corbett Glen Filing No. 4 - Final Plat 
(subject to the following condition(s)…). 
For Denial: I move to deny approval of the Resubdivision of Outlot D and Lot 4, Block 5, Corbett Glen Filing No. 4 - Final 
Plat. 
 

Reviewed: 
 
_________________________ 
Town Manager 
 



























































 
AGENDA ITEM 10B 
 
 
 
 

AGREEMENT 
WITH  

RG AND ASSOCIATES 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATION 
 
AGENDA DATE:  December 17, 2018 
 
ITEM NUMBER: 10B 
 
SUBJECT:  Consider an Agreement with RG & Associates for Planning and Development Services 
 
ACTION PROPOSED: Approve the Agreement with RG & Associates for Planning and Development Services  
 
PRESENTED BY: Matt LeCerf, Interim Town Manager  
 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:  The Town has in place since 2013 a standing agreement with RG & 
Associates for Planning and Development Review Services when our Town Planner has multiple projects running 
concurrently and the workload is such that the resources available do not permit for plan and development review 
to be completed in a reasonable and timely manner.  
 
Mr. Franklin, our current Town Planner has submitted his notice of resignation/retirement to be effective at the 
end of the 2018 fiscal and calendar year. While the position to fill his vacancy closed on December 7, 2018, we 
are currently moving through the applications and will work around the holidays to complete the interviews, 
conduct a meet and greet, and fill this position. Our target to have this position filled is conservatively set for the 
end of February; hopefully sooner. During the gap that will likely exist from Mr. Franklin’s departure and the 
new Planning & Development Director (new title, same position) coming online, there is a need to increase the 
defined services we receive from RG & Associates on an interim basis. Accordingly, presented and attached for 
your consideration is an amendment to our existing agreement which will provide for an increase in planning and 
development services for the Town from RG & Associates. This will help to ensure that there is not a diminished 
level of services to both our development partners and more importantly our existing residents and commercial 
businesses. 
 
This agreement for increase services has a defined closing date of March 31, 2019 to help facilitate the transition 
of a new Planning & Development Director as well. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
LEGAL ADVICE:  The Agreement presented was reviewed by the Town Attorney. 
 
FINANCIAL ADVICE: N/A 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the Agreement with RG & Associates as presented. 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
For Approval: I move to approve the Agreement for planning and development review services as presented with RG & 
Associates and authorize the Town Manager to sign it. 
 
For Denial:  I move to deny approval of the Agreement for planning and development review services as presented with 
RG & Associates. 
  
Reviewed: 
 
_________________________ 
Town Manager 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGREEMENT 



 

 
 

TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN  
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made and 
entered into this ____ day of ________ 20__ (the “Effective Date”) by and between the Town of 
Johnstown, Colorado, a Colorado home-rule municipal corporation (the “Town”) and RG and 
Associates, LLC, [a Colorado Limited Liability Company] (“Contractor”) (collectively, the 
“Parties”). 

WHEREAS, the Town desires to engage the services of Contractor and Contractor wishes 
to provide those services more fully described on Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein 
by reference (“Services”), for the Town; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to memorialize their contractual relationship. 

NOW, THEREFORE, incorporating the foregoing Recitals herein, which are hereby 
acknowledged as being true and correct, and in consideration of the mutual promises, agreements, 
undertakings and covenants, as set forth herein, and for other good and valuable consideration, the 
receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby mutually agree as 
follows: 

SECTION 1:  PARTIES 

1.01 Town.  The Town is a home-rule municipal corporation located in Johnstown, 
Colorado. 
 

1.02 Contractor.  Contractor has the background, expertise and education to provide 
the Services.  Contractor is a private, independent business entity who will exercise discretion 
and judgment of an independent contractor in the performance and exercise of its rights and 
obligations under this Agreement.  Contractor shall use its own judgment and skills in 
determining the method, means and manner of performing this Agreement.  Contractor shall be 
responsible for the proper performance of this Agreement in accordance with the terms hereof 
and any and all applicable federal, state, and municipal laws, regulations and orders. 

SECTION 2: SERVICES, TERM AND COMPENSATION 

2.01 Services.  Contractor agrees to perform the Services for the Town.    
 
2.02 Term.  Unless otherwise terminated in accordance with Section 5, the term of this 

Agreement shall be from the Effective Date through March 31, 2019, and shall not extend beyond 
that date absent the written approval of the Town.  

 
2.03 Duties and Compensation.  The Contractor’s duties and compensation shall be as 



 
 

set forth on Exhibit A.  In the event of a conflict between the provisions in this Agreement and 
Exhibit A, the provisions in this Agreement shall control.  Payment for Services shall be 
provided to Contractor within thirty (30) days of Contractor providing a detailed invoice to the 
Town. 

 
2.04 Background Check.  The Town may, in its sole discretion, conduct a background 

check of Contractor, its owners and employees. Contractor agrees to execute any forms 
necessary to facilitate the background check. 

 
SECTION 3: OPERATIONS 

3.01 Expenses:  Contractor shall not incur any expense or debt on behalf of the Town 
without the Town’s prior written authorization.  

3.02 Federal, State, and Municipal Laws and Regulations.  Contractor agrees to abide 
by all applicable federal, state, and municipal laws and regulations and rules.   

SECTION 4:  INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY PROVISIONS 

4.01 Insurance. Contractor shall maintain and keep in force during the term of this 
Agreement one or more policies of liability insurance written by one or more responsible 
insurance carrier(s) authorized to do business in the State of Colorado, which will include 
protecting and indemnifying the Town in the following amounts: 

 
a) Comprehensive General Liability - $1,000,000 combined aggregate 
b) Workers Compensation – as required by law 

Contractor shall furnish to the Town appropriate certificates of coverage for such insurance.  
The insurance may not be canceled without at least fifteen (15) days’ advance written notice to 
the Town.  Any required deductible or co-insurance amount shall be paid by the Contractor.   

4.02 Damage and Indemnity. Contractor assumes full responsibility for any and all 
damages caused by Contractor’s exercise of its activities under by this Agreement. 
Contractor agrees that it will at all times protect, defend and indemnify and hold harmless the 
Town, its officers, agents, employees, tenants and their successors and assigns from and against 
all liabilities, losses, claims, demands, actions and court costs (including reasonable attorneys’ 
fees), arising from or related to loss or damage to property or injury to or death to any persons 
resulting in any manner from the actions or failure to act of Contractor or any invitees, guests, 
agents, employees or subcontractors of Contractor, whether brought by any of such persons or any 
other person arising from Contractor’s activities as authorized by this Agreement. 

SECTION 5:  TERMINATION 
5.01 Termination.  The Town or Contractor] may terminate this Agreement, with or 

without cause, by providing thirty (30) days prior written notice to Contractor.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Town terminates this Agreement for cause and 
determines that a notice period is not in the best interests of the Town, the Town may 
terminate this Agreement by providing written notice to Contractor effective immediately.   



 
 

SECTION 6: INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

6.01 Independent Contractor.  Contractor understands and agrees that Contractor is an 
independent contractor and not an employee of the Town.  The Town shall not provide benefits 
of any kind to Contractor.  The Town shall not be responsible for withholding any portion of 
Contractor’s compensation for the payment of Federal Insurance Contributions Act (FICA) tax, 
workers’ compensation, or other taxes or benefits.  CONTRACTOR IS NOT ENTITLED TO 
UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION COVERAGE FROM THE TOWN.  CONTRACTOR 
IS OBLIGATED TO PAY FEDERAL AND STATE INCOME TAX ON MONEYS PAID 
PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT.  As long as there is not a conflict of interest with the 
Town, Contractor may engage in any other lawful business activities during the term of this 
Agreement. 

SECTION 7: NOTICE  

7.01 Notices.  All notices, demands, or other documents required or desired to be 
given, made or sent to either Party under this Agreement shall be made in writing, shall be 
deemed effective upon receipt and shall be personally delivered or mailed postage prepaid, 
certified mail, return receipt requested as follows: 
 
 TO THE TOWN: 
 Town of Johnstown 
 Attn: Town Clerk 
 450 S. Parish Avenue 
 Johnstown, CO 80534 
 Email: ____________ 
 

TO CONTRACTOR:    
 RG and Associates, LLC 
Attn: Ricardo Goncalves, PE 
4885 Ward Road, Suite 100 
Wheat Ridge, CO 80033 

  

The addresses for notices may be changed by written notice given to the other Party in 
the manner provided above.  Notice may also be sent via e-mail delivery and shall be effective 
upon confirmation of receipt of the email. 

SECTION 8:  MISCELLANEOUS 

8.01 Time.  Time is of the essence of this Agreement and of each covenant hereof. 

8.02 Non-Appropriation of Funds. Pursuant to Section 29-1-110, C.R.S., as amended, 
financial obligations of the Town payable as set forth herein, after the current fiscal year, are 
contingent upon funds for that purpose being appropriated, budgeted, and otherwise made 
available.  This Agreement shall be terminated effective January 1 of the first fiscal year for 
which funds are not appropriated. 



 
 

8.03 Illegal Aliens.  Contractor shall comply with the statutory provisions prohibiting 
employment of illegal aliens, as set forth on Exhibit B, attached hereto and incorporated herein 
by such reference. 

8.04 Assignment; Third Party Rights.  Contractor may not assign, delegate or 
subcontract any part of its rights, duties or obligations under this Agreement.  The Parties do not 
intend to confer any benefit hereunder on any person or entity other than the Parties hereto. 

8.05 Amendment. This Agreement may not be amended or modified except by a 
subsequent written instrument signed by both Parties. 

8.06 Severability.  If any part, term or provision of this Agreement is declared 
unlawful or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect, 
except that, in the event any state or federal governmental agency or court authoritatively 
determines that the relationship between the Town and Contractor is one of employment rather 
than independent contractor, this Agreement shall become null and void in its entirety. 

8.07 Waiver.  No consent or waiver, express or implied, by a Party to or of any 
breach or default by the other Party in the performance by the other Party of its obligations 
hereunder shall be deemed or construed to be a consent or waiver to or of any other breach or 
default by the non-defaulting Party.  Failure on the part of any Party to complain of any act or 
failure to act or to declare any other Party in default, irrespective of how long such failure 
continues, shall not constitute a waiver by such Party of its rights hereunder. 

8.08 Governmental Immunity.  The Parties agree that the Town is relying on, and does 
not waive or intend to waive by any provision of the Agreement, the monetary limitations or any 
other rights, immunities, and protections provided by the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, 
§§ 24-10-101 et seq., 10 C.R.S., as from time to time amended, or otherwise available to the Town, 
its officers, or its employees. 

8.09 Applicable Law and Venue.  This Agreement shall be construed according to 
the laws of the State of Colorado.  Venue for any claim, proceeding or action arising out of this 
Agreement shall be in Weld County, State of Colorado. 

8.10 Mediation.  In the event of any dispute arising under this Agreement, except in the 
case of injunctive relief as set forth in Paragraph 8.11, the Parties shall submit the matter to 
mediation prior to commencing legal action and shall equally share the cost of the mediation. 

8.11 Right to Injunction.  The Parties hereto acknowledge that the services to be 
rendered by the Contractor under this Agreement and the rights and privileges granted to the 
Town under the Agreement are of a special, unique, unusual and extraordinary character which 
gives them a peculiar value, the loss of which may not be reasonably or adequately compensated 
by damages in any action at law, and the breach by the Contractor of any of the provisions of this 
Agreement may cause the Town irreparable injury and damage.  The Contractor agrees that the 
Town, in addition to other relief at law, shall be entitled to injunctive and other equitable relief in 
the event of, or to prevent, a breach of any provision of this Agreement by the Contractor. 



 
 

8.12 Costs and Attorney’s Fees.  If any judicial proceedings may hereafter be brought 
to enforce any of the provisions of this Agreement, the Town, if the prevailing party, shall be 
entitled to recover the costs of such proceedings, including reasonable attorney’s fees and 
reasonable expert witness fees. 

8.13 Entire Agreement.  The provisions of this Agreement represent the entire and 
integrated agreement between the Town and the Contractor and supersede all prior negotiations, 
representations and agreements, whether written or oral.  

8.14 Public Official Personal Liability.  Nothing herein shall be construed as creating 
any personal liability on the part of any elected official, officer, employee or agent of the Town. 

8.15 No Presumption.  Each Party acknowledges that it has carefully read and 
reviewed the terms of this Agreement.  Each Party acknowledges that the entry into and 
execution of this Agreement is of its own free and voluntary act and deed, without compulsion.  
Each Party acknowledges that it has obtained, or has had the opportunity to obtain, the advice of 
legal counsel of its own choosing in connection with the negotiation and execution of this 
Agreement and with respect to all matters set forth herein.  The Parties agree that this Agreement 
reflects the joint drafting efforts of all Parties and in the event of any dispute, disagreement or 
controversy arising from this agreement, the Parties shall be considered joint authors and no 
provision shall be interpreted against any Party because of authorship. 

8.16 Headings.  The headings in this Agreement are inserted only for the purpose of 
convenient reference and in no way define, limit or prescribe the scope or intent of this Agreement 
or any part thereof. 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.] 
 



 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the date first 
written above.  
 
TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO 

 
ATTEST: 
 
By:__________________________         By:_______________________________ 
Diana Seele, Town Clerk                           Scott, James Mayor 
 
 
 

[__________________________]: 
       
       
 

By:_______________________________ 
Name: Ricardo Goncalves, PE 
Title:  President 

 
STATE OF COLORADO) 
                                         ) ss 
COUNTY OF _________) 
 
 
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this _________day of __________, 20_____, by 
_______________________ as the ______________ of _______________________. 
 
 
 WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
 My commission expires:__________________________ 
 
                                                                          ______________________________ 
                                                                          Notary Public 

        



 
 

EXHIBIT A 
SERVICES 

 



 
 

 
 

 



 
 

 
 

  



 
 

 



 
 

EXHIBIT B 
REQUIRED PROVISIONS FOR CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 

PROHIBITING EMPLOYMENT OF ILLEGAL ALIENS 
 

Contractor shall not: 
 
1. Knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work under this public 

contract for services; or 
 
2. Enter into a contract with a subcontractor that fails to certify to the Contractor that the 

subcontractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform 
work under this public contract for services. 

 
Contractor has confirmed the employment eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for 
employment to perform work under the public contract for services through participation in 
either the e-verify program or the Department of Labor and Employment program.   
 
Contractor is prohibited from using either the e-verify program or the Department of Labor and 
Employment program procedures to undertake pre-employment screening of job applicants while 
the public contract for services is being performed. 
 
If Contractor obtains actual knowledge that a subcontractor performing work under the public 
contract for services knowingly employs or contracts with an illegal alien, the Contractor shall be 
required to: 
 
1. Notify the subcontractor and the contracting state agency or political subdivision within 

three days that the Contractor has actual knowledge that the subcontractor is employing 
or contracting with an illegal alien; and 

 
2. Terminate the subcontract with the subcontractor if within three days of receiving the 

notice required pursuant to subparagraph 1 of this subparagraph the subcontractor does 
not stop employing or contracting with the illegal alien; except that the Contractor shall 
not terminate the contract with the subcontractor if during such three days that 
subcontractor provides information to establish that the subcontractor has not knowingly 
employed or contracted with an illegal alien. 

 
Contractor shall comply with any reasonable request by the Department made in the course of an 
investigation that the Department of Labor and Employment is undertaking pursuant to the 
authority established in subsection (5) of Section 8-17.5-102 of the Colorado Revised Statutes. 
 

IF CONTRACTOR VIOLATES ANY OF THE AFOREMENTIONED 
REQUIREMENTS, THE TOWN MAY TERMINATE THE CONTRACT FOR 
BREACH OF CONTRACT.  IF THIS CONTRACT IS SO TERMINATED, 
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE LIABLE FOR ACTUAL AND CONSEQUENTIAL 
DAMAGES TO THE TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN. 



 
AGENDA ITEM 10C 
 
 
 
 

DISCUSSION 
OF INFRASTRUCTURE 

INVESTMENT 
 
 



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN 

MEMORANDUM 
INFORMATION ONLY 

 

The Community That Cares 

 
 
TO:   Honorable Mayor and Board of Trustees 
 
FROM:  Matt LeCerf, Interim Town Manager 
 
DATE:  December 17, 2018 
 
SUBJECT:  Infrastructure Request 
 
Attached you will find a letter received on November 28, 2018 requesting consideration by the 
Town to invest in infrastructure. While this letter is related to the Villages at Johnstown 
Subdivision, it has similarities to recent conversations I have had with other prospective 
developers inquiring about Town assistance in sanitary sewer infrastructure construction.  
 
In both of these instances, developers are inquiring about infrastructure costs; specifically if the 
Town would partner on these infrastructure costs or take a leadership and financial role. The 
benefits of taking a proactive approach allows us to build for the future and ensure long-term 
sustainable and managed growth in the community. It also can reduce the threat of stalled growth 
due to collection capacity issues – notwithstanding the aspects of capacity limits at the respective 
treatment plants. In contrast, it also places some or all of the financial burden in the short-term 
on the Town until costs are fully recovered. 
 
I do not believe that this topic can be handled and fully vetted in a single discussion topic with 
the Council, but I believe it is important to evaluate our position from time to time on 
development. Considering the timeliness of this letter and my recent meeting with another 
developer, this topic may be ripe for review. There are other critical pieces of information you 
will need to make the best decision for our community as we move forward including, but not 
limited to the bullet list below. The initial purpose of this memo is simply to provide the Council 
with information and also for staff to receive information from the Council related to other 
questions you may have on this topic.  
 
With the Council’s permission, I would like to suggest that we schedule a work session in early 
January to discuss this item and receive clear direction from the Council on how they would like 
to proceed. 
 
Items to consider include, but are not limited to: 

• Pros and Cons of a partnership or Town taking a lead role 
• What the estimated costs of such an investment based on the developments currently 

moving through our review process? 
• Can an impact or assessment fee be applied to help recover costs of the investment? 



• How does this follow our long-term goals and objectives for managed growth? 
• What if changes in the economy impact the project and cost recovery aspects that may be 

included? 
• Is there a threshold or policy the Council would like establish that determines the criteria 

needed to be met for us to consider participation? 







TOWN BOARD AGENDA COMMUNICATION 
 
AGENDA DATE: December 17, 2018 
 
ITEM NUMBER: 10D 
 
SUBJECT: Recognition of John Franklin, Town Planner 
  
ACTION PROPOSED: N/A 
 
PRESENTED BY: Mayor Scott James 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: Mayor Scott James will be presenting John Franklin, Town Planner with a plaque in 
recognition for his dedicated service to the Town of Johnstown. 
 
LEGAL ADVICE: N/A 
FINANCIAL ADVICE: N/A 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: N/A 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS:   
For Approval:  N/A 
For Denial:  N/A   
  
Reviewed: 
 
 
 ____________________________ 
Town Manager 



TOWN BOARD AGENDA COMMUNICATION 
 
AGENDA DATE: December 17, 2018 
 
ITEM NUMBER: 10E 
 
SUBJECT: Recognition of  Outgoing Mayor 
  
ACTION PROPOSED: N/A 
 
PRESENTED BY: Mayor Pro-Tem Gary Lebsack 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: Mayor Pro Tem Gary Lebsack will be presenting outgoing Mayor Scott James with 
a coat and plaque in recognition for his dedicated service to the Town of Johnstown. 
 
LEGAL ADVICE: N/A 
FINANCIAL ADVICE: N/A 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: N/A 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS:   
For Approval:  N/A 
For Denial:  N/A   
  
Reviewed: 
 
 
 ____________________________ 
Town Manager 






































	ADP9D6C.tmp
	Town Council
	Town Hall, Council Chambers
	450 So. Parish Avenue
	7:00 PM
	MISSION STATEMENT-“The mission of the government of the Town of Johnstown is to provide leadership based upon trust and integrity, commitment directed toward responsive service delivery, and vision for enhancing the quality of life in our community.
	Members of the audience are invited to speak at the Council meeting.  Public Comment (item No. 5) is reserved for citizen comments on items not contained on the printed agenda.  Citizen comments are limited to three (3) minutes per speaker. When sever...

	ADP3952.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADP97A9.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADP9FF5.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADP1538.tmp
	Town Council
	Town Hall, Council Chambers
	450 So. Parish Avenue
	7:00 PM
	MISSION STATEMENT-“The mission of the government of the Town of Johnstown is to provide leadership based upon trust and integrity, commitment directed toward responsive service delivery, and vision for enhancing the quality of life in our community.
	Members of the audience are invited to speak at the Council meeting.  Public Comment (item No. 5) is reserved for citizen comments on items not contained on the printed agenda.  Citizen comments are limited to three (3) minutes per speaker. When sever...

	ADPBFD0.tmp
	AGENDA ITEM 10A

	ADP88EB.tmp
	AGENDA ITEM 7

	ADP28D2.tmp
	Town Manager

	ADP18B9.tmp
	Town Council
	Town Hall, Council Chambers
	450 So. Parish Avenue
	7:00 PM
	MISSION STATEMENT-“The mission of the government of the Town of Johnstown is to provide leadership based upon trust and integrity, commitment directed toward responsive service delivery, and vision for enhancing the quality of life in our community.
	Members of the audience are invited to speak at the Council meeting.  Public Comment (item No. 5) is reserved for citizen comments on items not contained on the printed agenda.  Citizen comments are limited to three (3) minutes per speaker. When sever...

	ADP4140.tmp
	Town Council
	Town Hall, Council Chambers
	450 So. Parish Avenue
	7:00 PM
	MISSION STATEMENT-“The mission of the government of the Town of Johnstown is to provide leadership based upon trust and integrity, commitment directed toward responsive service delivery, and vision for enhancing the quality of life in our community.
	Members of the audience are invited to speak at the Council meeting.  Public Comment (item No. 5) is reserved for citizen comments on items not contained on the printed agenda.  Citizen comments are limited to three (3) minutes per speaker. When sever...

	ADP4C.tmp
	____________________________

	ADP80B.tmp
	____________________________

	ADPFE3A.tmp
	AGENDA ITEM 10C

	ADP1AF0.tmp
	_________________________
	Town Manager

	ADP5CC2.tmp
	AGENDA ITEM 10B

	ADP3D55.tmp
	SECTION 1:  PARTIES

	ADP8A6D.tmp
	MEMORANDUM
	FROM:  Diana Seele, Town Clerk/Treasurer




